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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHES

On behalf of the board of directors of Talent Property Group
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The consolidated revenue and gross profit of the Group for 2023
amounted to approximately RMB766.7 million (2022: RMB276.1
million) and RMB188.7 million (2022: RMB98.6 million),
respectively. The revenue for the year was mainly attributable to
the sales of villas of Xintian Banshan as well as the delivery and
sales of pre-sold units of Xuzhou Linan Intelligent Industrial Park
and Yangzhou Intelligent Living City. After taking into account
the sluggish performance of property market in the PRC and the
independent valuation, the Group made impairment provisions
for a number of projects accordingly. The Group recorded
losses attributable to the shareholders for 2023 of approximately
RMB33.8 million (2022: RMB39.1 million).
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OPERATION REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

With the gradual easing of the Pandemic and the ongoing
recovery of trade, the fiscal and monetary policies of the United
States and counties in Europe entered into a tightening cycle. At
the same time, the geopolitical wars and political environment
continued to deteriorate, resulting in a slowdown in economic
growth and divergence in economic performance among
countries across the world. Being affected by the foresaid
factors, we witnessed weaker demand for China exports and
decreasing foreign investment. Coupled with the sluggish labor
market as a result of the lockdown of economic activities in the
combat against the Pandemic over the past years, consumers
became cautious about spending due to lack of confidence,
leading to a decline in property demands. The sluggish
performance of the property market led to credit defaults by high
debt real estate companies. To address the property crisis, the
government gradually lifted the restrictive administration measures
imposed on the real estate industry over the past years in the
second half of 20283, with an aim to stabilize the property sector
which serves as an important pillar of the national economy.

Xintian Banshan

The Group’s flagship luxury project Xintian Banshan, which is
located in Guangzhou, focuses on the pursuit for exquisite and rare
luxury residence and supreme lifestyle by the wealthy customers.
Despite the sluggish performance of property market in the PRC,
the villas (known as ¥k e 2111ZF) at Zone B which are built along
the mountain slope and the villas (known as #1 X o L JTE &) at
Zone E which boast the most superior mountaintop location of the
project got sales subscription. During the year, total subscription
area and amount for Xintian Banshan of approximately 4,000
sgm (2022: 2,000 sgm) and approximately RMB310 million
(2022: RMB140 million) was recorded. According to the better-
than-expected data for the first two months of 2024 published
by the National Bureau of Statistics, and with the expectation of
continuous relaxation of national and local property policies, the
market sentiment of the property sector is expected to improve,
which will expedite cash return from property sales.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TEHES
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHES

Logistics Commercial Property Projects

Yangzhou Intelligent Living City, which is located in Guangling
District, Yangzhou City, is developed in two phases, namely Zone
A and Zone B. Zone A consists of twelve blocks of commercial
and office units with a saleable area of approximately 90,000
sgm, of which seven blocks were completed and continued to be
delivered and sold. Due to the oversupply of similar products in
the local market, coupled with the impact of the Pandemic and
the economy downturn, sales of the project remained slow. The
Group launched the commercial units on the ground floors during
the year, with an aim to increase cash return. The subscription
amount and area of commercial and office units as well as
commercial units on the ground floors for the year amounted to
approximately RMB47.6 million and 3,000 sgm (2022: RMB14.8
million and 1,900 sgm) respectively.

Xuzhou Linan Intelligent Industrial Park, which is located in
Yunlong District, Xuzhou City, consists of commercial units
and office units with the saleable area of approximately 62,000
sgm and 41,000 sgm, respectively. Despite the delay in project
construction due to the city lockdown measures for pandemic
control, the project was finally completed in early 2023, and
proactive efforts have been made to push forward property
delivery during the year. As of the end of 2023, the accumulated
subscription areas of commercial and office units over the past
years amounted to approximately 67,000 sgm, and the remaining
units with an area of 23,000 sgm are pending for delivery.

Looking forward to 2024, the Group will continue to push
forward the delivery of Xuzhou Project, promote the sales of the
two projects and facilitate the transfer of properties to offset
construction cost payables, and explore the future development
of the undeveloped lots of land in Yangzhou project with the
relevant authorities.

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#
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Talent Shoes Trading Center

Recently, the economic activities at Talent Shoes Trading
Center, a 10-storey commercial and office complex located in
Liwan District, Guangzhou, became sluggish after a short-lived
rebound driven by the lifting of pandemic prevention and control
measures, with increasing tenant turnover due to factors such
as weakened export and industrial shift. The Group continued
to improve tenant service and optimise rent portfolio, in an effort
to attract tenants in a competition with other peers in the region
and maintain occupancy rate.

Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project

The Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project, which is located in the
CBD of Tianhe District in Guangzhou and near Guangzhou East
Railway station, is the Group’s joint development project with
Sun Hung Kai Properties Group for over ten years. Due to the
capital reduction carried out during the year, the Company got
a return of registered capital partly in an amount of RMB150
million. Looking forward to 2024, the Group will push forward
the outstanding cooperation issues of the associated company
as well as the distribution of assets including the remaining few
hundred parking spaces and bank deposits.

APPRECIATION

The board of directors would like to take this opportunity to
express its sincere gratitude to all customers and business
partners for their trust and support to the Group’s products and
businesses, and also extend its thanks for the commitment,
dedication and contribution of all employees over the past year.

Zhang Gao Bin

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, the PRC

27 March 2024
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v YNEuEAE

OVERVIEW

The principal activity of Talent Property Group Limited is
investment holding. The Group engage in the businesses of (i)
property development, (ii) property investment and (iii) property
management in the PRC since the Group completed the
acquisition of equity interests in various real estate projects in the
PRC in 2011 (the “Previous Acquisition”).

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a
revenue and gross profit of RMB766.7 million and RMB188.7
million, respectively, as compared to a revenue and gross profit
of RMB276.1 million and RMB98.6 million, respectively, for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The construction of our logistic commercial property projects
was primarily completed and entered into delivery and sales
of completed units. During the year, a revenue of RMB449.3
million was recognised from the commencement of delivery of
pre-sold units of our Xuzhou Intelligent Industrial Town with a
gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately 44,000 square meters
(“sgm”). Besides, a revenue of RMB55.3 million (2022: RMB38.8
million) was recorded from the sales of commercial and office
units of our Yangzhou Intelligence Living City with GFA totalling
approximately 5,100 sgm (2022: 5,200 sgm). Despite the
overall property markets sentiments weakened, a revenue of
RMB220.4 million (2022: RMB213.2 million) was recorded from
the sales of Xintian Banshan Villa with a GFA of approximately
3,100 sgm (2022: 3,300 sgm). Revenue from sales of other
properties of RMB18.9 million (2022: RMB1.6 million) was also
recorded. Rental income and property management fee income
of RMB11.2 million (2022: RMB10.5 million) and RMB2.7 million
(2022: RMBS3.3 million), respectively, were recorded from
our Talent Shoes Trading Center, whereas rental income and
property management fee generated from other properties of the
Group was RMB9.0 million in total (2022: RMB8.7 million).

After taking into account the costs from Previous Acquisition,
subsequent development cost and the net provision for
impairment loss, revenue from logistic projects nearly doubled
the gross profit to RMB188.7 million (2022: RMB98.6 million),
whereas these dragged down the overall gross margin to 24.6%
(2022: 35.7%).
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

DISTRIBUTION COSTS, ADMINISTRATIVE
AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Distribution cost increased from RMB9.6 million to RMB13.2
million. It was primarily the result of increased commission
expenses and efforts in supporting sales of Xintian Banshan,
while administrative and other operating expenses were reduced
from RMB60.2 million to RMB40.1 million. In addition to cautious
control of expenses, no further provision of compensation for late
delivery was required as delivery of pre-sold units of our Xuzhou
project commenced early this year.

SHARE OF RESULT OF AN ASSOCIATE

The Linhe Cun Rebuilding project is an old village redevelopment
project located in the CBD of Tianhe District in Guangzhou and
it is adjacent to the Guangzhou East Railway station. The project
is carried out by an associate which is 30% and 70% owned by
the Group and Sun Hung Kai Properties Group, respectively.
Development of the project was completed. All the remaining
residential units were substantially sold and delivered in previous
years. After taking into account the costs from Previous
Acquisition, which is re-calculated to reflect the remaining
underlying assets available for sale, profits derived from the sales
of car parking spaces, clubhouse and reversal of over-provided
land appreciation tax, the Group recorded a share of profit of
RMB42.4 million (2022: share of loss of RMB4.4 million).

FAIR VALUE CHANGES ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND PROVISION OF
IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF PROPERTIES
PORTFOLIO

It was anticipated that after the cancelling of all pandemic
restrictions in late 2022, the economy would rebound. After a
temporary property upswing earlier in this year, the momentum of
recovery in the real estate market waned and declined noticeably
thereafter. Under economic uncertainty, low confidence among
buyers hampered demand and debt crisis in the property sector
further dampened the outlook. Property market struggles to
recover despite raft of stimulus administrative and financial relief
policies. Consideration has made been by the independent
property valuer against the overall weakened properties sector
as well as the current sales and leasing record of our properties
portfolio, a fair value deficit of RMB54.7 million (2022: RMB49.4
million) were recorded, mainly attributable to our Talent Shoes
Trading Center. Provision for impairment loss totalling RMB98.1
million (2022: reversal of impairment loss of RMB45.5 million)
was provided for our logistic commercial projects in Xuzhou and
Yangzhou.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v YNEuEAE

FINANCE COSTS

Given the sluggish market and riskiness of starting new
investments, the Group chose to repay various loans in order
to save finance cost. As such, finance costs on loans (before
capitalisation) of the Group have reduced to RMB22.0 million
(2022: RMB45.5 million).

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Provision for enterprise income tax and land appreciation tax
increased to RMB56.5 million (2022: RMB48.7 million) as a result
of increased revenue and taxable profit. While higher deferred tax
credit of RMB16.0 million (2022: RMB10.9 million) was attributed
to increased fair value deficits of our investment properties.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Although the fair value deficits and provision of impairment losses
against properties portfolio increased, the increase of revenue
and gross profit, tightened control of operating expenses and
increased share of result of an associate narrowed the loss
attributable to owners of the Company from RMB39.1 million in
2022 to RMB33.8 million in the current year.

PROSPECT

In view of the political instability across the world and slowdown
in economic growth in the PRC over the past two years, the
Group has been focusing on destocking, reducing liabilities and
exercising tight control over operating costs, and has achieved
positive results. Looking forward to 2024, the Group will continue
to adhere to this strategy, with an aim to smoothly navigate
through this downturn period of the real estate market.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v NEuEAE

PORTFOLIO OF PROPERTIES MEHE
As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s properties and projectson WZZEZ=F+=-F=+—H AEBENREY
hand are shown in the table below: ERBBHHINTE
Investment properties REWE

Lease term Gross floor Percentage
Project and address Purpose of land area interest
15 B R it iR T it EHABR HEEER EEEDL

(sqm)
(FrK)

A 10-storey commercial building built overa ~ Commercial Medium 22,526* 100%
basement of 3 levels, mixed commercial and B  HA
office building with car parking spaces.
No. 18 Zhan Xi Road, Liwan District,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC (“Talent Shoes Trading Center”)
H R A BN T % 2 R U TE ER 185%
—IERER=EE FAERERR ARG R
BEBEMNZI0EaRERET
(IRREERSHL])
Commercial units of Shangyu Garden, Commercial Medium 2,198 100%
No. 45 Tianhe Road, Tianhe District, [EHES FH]
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC (“Shangyu Garden”)
FP B B A B M T RO [ RO R 4558
FEER( FEER ] 2 ERELA
* Being gross floor area of property excluding the car parking * B AR EmE (T RIEFERL) -

spaces.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v YNEuEAE

Properties under development BRPYE
Planned Expected
saleable Percentage Stage of completion
Project and address Site area GFA interest completion date
STEITEHE
HA R ht WREE AEEEE 2 HEZASH TRER BRI B
(sqm) (sgm)

(FH2K) (FIHK)

Yangzhou Intelligence Living City 46,000 Approximate 100% Partial 2H 2024

A project to the south of Kaifa (Zone A) #752,000** completed —EF
East Road and east of Jiangdu (AR) HrE®RT THF
South Road, Yangzhou, Jiangsu and

Province, the PRC 54

BINEZ AR 35,000

AR BT8R & 15 N T R B SR (Zone B)

LARS NI #ma B8 LA SR HY I8 B (Bl@)

*k

It includes saleable area contracted for sales but not yet deliver
in zone A. Construction area of commercial and office units of
24,000 sgm and basement of 34,000 sgm in zone A are planned
to retain as owner’s occupation/investment. The project has to
retain 40% of area as owner’s occupation/investment.

Completed properties held for sale

- BREARCAVNHEEBRIN ZAHERRE - A
% B 7 3 M R BE A S SR T A8 24,000°F 75 oK &
1 /B534,000°F 75 K&+ BIR B EHE B AME AR
B - 2B HARBA0%NEEEES AL
A/ RERS -

FEHEZERTIYE

Gross floor Percentage

Project and address area interest

HE Kbt BEEHE HEREOL
(sqm)
(‘FHK)

Residential units in zone B, D and E of Approximate 100%
Xintian Banshan #725,000

South Lake Village Phase I,

Tonghe Road, Baiyun District,

Guangzhou City, Guangdong

Province, the PRC (“Xintian Banshan”)

(RIS

PEEREBEMNTHER E M
FE#A LA S8 — A

R ([FR*1L]1)B - DRERSETEL

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#



BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v NEuEAE

Gross floor Percentage

Project and address area interest
HE Rk HMEEERE EZBob
(sqm)
(FF2K)
Xuzhou Intelligence Industry Town Approximate 100%
A project to the south of Guozhuang #360,000%
Road and North of Longhai Railway,
Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
RN EBEE/NE
REDT#E RN
20 B A R R e g B4
PSid:opEl=
Residential units of Approximate 100%
South Lake Village Phase |, Tonghe Road, #3700
Baiyun District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
R
PEERE EMNT
HE & R
FEURILESE —H2
FEE A
Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project Approximate 30%
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City, #7300
Guangdong Province, the PRC
MMM ERIER
B E R A BN TR &
Car parking spaces of Xintian Banshan, Dongming Xuan, N/A 100%
Tianlun Garden, Shangyu Garden and Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project N 3E A
IR RF L - RIGH - RfafEE - PEIEERMMNERIER ZFEU
# It excludes floor area of approximately 29,000 sqm for owner's  * TEEEEAMEA/E#29,000F ;5 KK i
occupation/investment. SEmEE -
* It includes area contracted for sales but not yet deliver. * BIEERTAHEEEARARI MM -
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v YNEuEAE

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2023 were
approximately RMB3,148.7 million (31 December 2022:
approximately RMB4,030.6 million) which were financed by the
total equity and total liabilities of approximately RMB1,635.7
million (31 December 2022: approximately RMB1,670.1 million)
and approximately RMB1,513.0 million (31 December 2022:
approximately RMB2,360.5 million) respectively.

The directors consider the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its operations and financial resources for financing
future investment opportunities.

The Group borrowings were all denominated in Renminbi. Bank
balances and cash were mainly denominated in Renminbi. As at
31 December 2023, there were no outstanding forward contracts
in foreign currency committed by the Group that might involve it
in significant foreign exchange risks and exposures.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gearing ratio then
computed as total liabilities over total assets was approximately
48.1% (31 December 2022: 58.6%). As at 31 December 2023,
bank borrowings amounted to RMB123.3 million (31 December
2022: RMB141.3 million) carry variable interest rate of the
People’s Bank of China 5 years loan base interest rate or plus
0.55% inflated rate. As at 31 December 2022, other borrowings
amounted to RMB297.2 million carry fixed rate with a range from
10.5% to 11.8%.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The revenue and the cost of goods sold and of service of the
Group are mainly denominated in Renminbi. Therefore, the Group
is not exposed to any other material foreign currency exchange
risk. An average rate and a closing rate of HK$1.10618:RMB1
and HK$1.10026:RMB1, respectively, were applied on
consolidation of the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023. No hedging measure has been implemented by
the Group.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, an investment property amounted
RMB458.0 million (31 December 2022: RMB506.0 million) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2022, to secure other borrowings, completed
properties held for sale amounted to RMB428.6 million were
pledged. During the year, other borrowings were fully repaid and
all such pledge was released.

NUMBERS AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 20283, the Group had 173 (31 December
2022: 199) employees, with about 171 in the Mainland China and
2 in Hong Kong. The Group’s emolument policy for employees
is set up by the Board. The emoluments of the employees
are determined on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence, with reference to prevailing salary levels in the
market and in accordance with prevailing labor law. Apart
from basic salary, staff benefits including medical insurance,
performance related bonus, social insurance and mandatory
provident fund would be provided by the Group.

The share option scheme approved by the shareholders meeting
held on 20 May 2013 was expired during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability from office
throughout the property portfolio. As a responsible corporation,
the Group strives to ensure minimal environmental impacts
by carefully managing its energy consumption, water usage,
property design and waste production. In addition, we engaged
construction contractors with relevant licenses that was granted
by government authorities encompass environmental protection
and work safety. The Group has closely monitored the project at
every stage to ensure the project development and construction
process are in compliance with environmental protection and
safety laws and regulations, and would require construction
contractors to immediately resolve any defect or non-compliance,
where necessary. In addition, the Group strives to minimize
the environmental impact by saving electricity and encouraging
recycle of office supplies and other materials. For further details,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

e 5 ap E)

EEERF

R-ZE-=F+-"A=+—8H KEDEARKE
458 0B L(ZE__F+-_A=+—H8: AR
¥506.08 &0 ) EEIRIF AR —ARBITRE -

R-ZTE-_—_F+-_A=+—H AREHEMmE
FoRBEFHECERIWMEARKI286EET
BT FR - HMEREEBEEE - AL
MRS BRRR o
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RZE-_=ZF+-_A=+—8 ' A&EEEH173
FZEI(ZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H :199%) -
HAMITIABTFREAR2AREE - A5 H
EBEZHMBERDBESSHE - EEFH 2
BHBEZRITHFSKFEREEZER - BEX
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v YNEuEAE

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in mainland China while the Company itself is listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The Group would make
professional judgement and seek professional legal advice from
its legal department and, where necessary, legal advisers to
ensure transactions and businesses to be performed by the
Group are in compliance with the applicable laws, regulations
and local industry practices in all material aspects.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that the Directors, senior management and
employees are instrumental to the success of the Group and that
their industry knowledge and understanding of the market will
enable the Group to maintain the competitiveness in the market.
Therefore, the Group offered competitive remuneration package
to relevant staff.

The Group maintains good relationship with existing and potential
customers to understand the market trends that would enable
the Group to adjust its operating and marketing strategies timely,
which are crucial to the development and success of the Group.

The Group maintains a solid and steady relationship with major
contractors to ensure product quality and progress on-schedule.
The Group works and closely monitors daily construction work of
its contractors and settled their work done timely.

The Group places effort to build up and maintain good
relationships with various commercial banks and financial
institutions as the businesses of the Group are capital intensive
nature and require on-going funding to maintain continuous
growth.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND FINANCIAL
GUARANTEE

Details of the capital commitment and financial guarantee are set
out in note 32 and 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

MARBESBEARA A 2023F F#H

BFEEER

AEENEKLETEAARFNBARETE
WFHR - MARB RS ERBBRM LT - K
SEBELE XA RZSHIETOEREF (0
VE)IZBRNEXLZER  BRAKEHE
TR Z MEBEMEEKRT EETERNE
B ERRMATTRER -

RAKEES - EFRHEEENEER
B

AEERA EE BREEENRBEALEE
RIS MRSOTENRRETIZN T R
EAREEARBTRBRES - Bt - AEEA
HRIE TIREAHF N OF IS -

AEBEARBERBCEEPHFRITFBENTHET
5BY  ERSAKRESURKREELZERE
B HWERARENERIRNEHEE -

FEEETEADHERBERBENAR - A
BREMEERTEEE -AEEHEEEABREA
EREYEREATEEIRTRRAEHEBE T
RIA{E -

MR AEENEBBEEARATRERER  FTESE

REABRHERE  AKEBNBILERFES
BRERITREBMEENRIFRIE -

BEXRAERVBER

BHEERFRERTBERZFBEHANEETER
K532 %40 o



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Gao Bin - aged 44, is the Chairman of the board
of directors of the Company and the President of the Group.
Mr. Zhang is responsible for the overall strategic development,
general management, human resources and the business
operation of the Group. Mr. Zhang obtained his bachelor degree
in business administration from the University of Greenwich,
the United Kingdom. He has over ten years of experience in the
property development industry. Mr. Zhang joined the Board in
December 2016.

Mr. LUO Zhangguan - aged 39, is the executive director of the
Company as well as the general manager of finance of the PRC
group companies, responsible for business development and
daily management of finance department. Mr. Luo graduated
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics and obtained a
bachelor degree in Economics with major in Finance (International
Finance). Mr. Luo joined department of business development of
Guangzhou branch of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
in 2007 and served as its credit analyst, customer service
manager and department head of SME banking, successively.
Before joining the Company, he has served as the Sub-Branch
Manager of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Guangzhou
Panyu sub-branch since 2012. Mr. Luo is the cousin of Mr.
Zhang Gao Bin. Mr. Luo joined the Group in April 2015.

ESNEREEBAEZER

HITEE

EEELEE 445 RARARIEFEXFERA
SEGH REILLEBEAEBE 2 BERBEEE -
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Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2023

17



18

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREBAEZER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LO Wai Hung - aged 64, obtained a bachelor degree in
Commerce from James Cook University of North Queensland,
Australia. Mr. Lo is a member of Chartered Accountants in
Australia and New Zealand and a fellow member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo is an
independent non-executive director of Tibet Water Resources
Limited (stock code: 1115) and China New Town Development
Company Limited (stock code: 1278). Mr. Lo is also a non
executive director of SY Holdings Group Limited (formerly known
as Sheng Ye Capital Limited) (stock code: 6069). Mr. Lo was
an independent non-executive director of Shandong Weigao
Group Medical Polymer Company Limited (stock code: 1066)
during August 2009 to June 2022 and C Cheng Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1486) during December 2013 to April 2023. All
the aforementioned companies are listed on Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lo joined the Group
in February 2011.

Mr. MAK Yiu Tong - aged 65, graduated from the China
University of Political Science and Law with a bachelor of law
degree in 1998. Mr. Mak has extensive experience in litigation
and corporate matters. At present, he is legal executive of Chiu,
Szeto & Cheng, Solicitors, a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. Mr.
Mak has been working in the legal industry for over 30 years.
Mr. Mak is an independent non-executive director of Hao Tian
International Constructions Investment Group Limited (stock
code: 1341) and Aceso Life Science Group Limited (stock code:
474). All the aforementioned companies are listed on Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Mak joined
the Group in December 2015.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. FOK Chi Tat Michael — aged 50, graduated from University
of Toronto with Bachelor of Commerce and received his Master
of Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and is a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Fok has over 25 years of extensive experience
in auditing, corporate finance and investment banking focusing
on IPO sponsorship, mergers and acquisitions, fund raising and
corporate restructuring. At present, Mr. Fok is the co-founder
and managing director of Maxa Capital Limited. Mr. Fok served
as the managing director and deputy head of investment banking
department in Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited and
was the director of Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited.
Mr. Fok joined the Group in August 2019.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEE Wai Kuen - aged 50, is the Company Secretary
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is responsible
for execution, supervision and advisory of financial reporting,
internal control, reorganisation, corporate governance and
company secretarial matters of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a
bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lee had
worked in an international firm of certified public accountants and
was the financial controller and company secretary of TeleEye
Holdings Ltd. (now known as CircuTech International Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 8051), the finance manager and company
secretary of ePRO Ltd. (now known as Sino Vision Worldwide
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8086), the financial controller of
WLS Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 8021) and deputy financial officer
and company secretary of MOBI Development Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 947), during the periods from May 2004 to June 2005, July
2005 to January 2006, January 2006 to August 2007 and August
2007 to May 2011, respectively, all of which are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lee joined the Group
in May 2011.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance
in the interests of shareholders and devotes effort to identifying
and formalising best practices. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Company has applied the principles and the
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) contained in Part 2 of Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and has complied with the
same.

THE BOARD

To protect and enhance shareholder value, the Board acts with
integrity and due care for the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The Board is collectively responsible for
leadership and for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. Leading the Group in
a responsible and effective manner, the Board adopts formal
terms of reference which detail its functions and responsibilities,
including, but not limited to, ensuring competent management,
approving objectives, strategies and business plans and
monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of affairs.

Delegation by the Board

The Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy and
corporate development and ensuring the business operations are
properly monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all
policy matters of the Group and material transactions. The Board
delegates the day-to-day operations to general managers and
department heads who are responsible for different aspects of
the operations of the Group.
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The attendance of individual Directors at meetings of the #HE-ZT-=F+_-A=+—HIFHEE @
Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2023, JRIBEENARFT @Z 2z HFERINT :
was as follows:

Number of attendance*/meetings held in 2023

REZBZZF2HERE BTERRY

Annual

General

Audit Remuneration  Nomination Meeting

The Board Committee Committee Committee BRER

Ex® EBKZEE® FHZEEE REZEE BERE

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (Chairman of the Board)** 4/4 N/A 11 1/1 11
ReBLRE(EEELE) N

Mr. Luo Zhangguan™* 4/4 N/A 11 11 1/1
BEEEE T

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHTES

Mr. Lo Wai Hung** 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1 11

EREERE"

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong™* 4/4 3/3 1/ 1/ 11

BRELAE™

Mr. Fok Chi Tat™ 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1

ESERLE™

* The Directors can attend meetings in person, by phone or through =« BEAHEIGEE  RBEAQNTZ AR
other means of electronic communication in accordance with the TEFKAEME TEATRAEMEeH -

Company’s bye-laws.

. During the year ended 31 December 2023, each of these Directors BHE_Z-_=F+_A=+—HIFE &
got training by seminars, newspapers, journals and updates EE BN Ee BT BT RAESE  EE
relating to the economy, general business, real estate or Directors’ ¥ EHESEERENSFEANESE
duties and responsibilities, etc. The Group also continuously Yo AEBBESMEEAE T HEAIRE
updates the Directors on the latest developments regarding the HERESHTHSRTRE -

Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements.

Currently, the Company does not appoint chief executive officer. ARA R ESEITHRAES, - ENANEF 2K
In view of the operation of the Group, the Board believes that the &k  EFCHEEETSRB 2 EEEALRE
present structure of the Board will provide a strong leadership B8 4EE - PURRIEH R R M HIET A SR
for the Group to implement prompt decisions and to formulate  Z%KE& - HAREBEB AR o

efficient strategies, which is for benefits of the Group.
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Moreover, the day-to-day operation of the Group’s businesses
are shared among those executive directors and the management
of the Company. Therefore, there should be a clear division of
the responsibilities at the board level to ensure a balance of
power and authority, so that power is not concentrated in any
one individual.

Together with a balanced of skill and experience for the
business of the Group, a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive director of the Board shall exercise
effective independent judgment. Currently, the Board comprises
of five directors, of which two are executive directors, namely Mr.
Zhang Gao Bin (“Mr. Zhang”) and Mr. Luo Zhangguan (“Mr. Luo”)
and three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lo
Wai Hung (“Mr. Lo”), Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (“Mr. Mak”) and Mr. Fok
Chi Tat Michael (“Mr. Fok”).

As at 31 December 2023, all the independent non-executive
directors were appointed for an initial term of two years which
is automatically renewable for successive term of one year upon
the expiry of the said term and subject to retirement and re-
election in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company. In
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, at each annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the directors shall
retire from office by rotation. A separate resolution has been set
for the approval of re-election of an independent non-executive
director who has served the Company for more than nine years.
The Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure the corporate governance practices of the Company are
not less exacting than those in the Code B.2.2 and B.2.3.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

The management is obliged to supply the Board with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the members to
make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities. Each director has separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to acquire more
information and to make further enquiries if necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Board and
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are established
with defined written terms of reference which are available to
shareholders on the Company’s website. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

Nomination committee

A nomination committee of the Company had been established
by the Board with written terms of reference. The nomination
committee comprises two executive directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
is chaired by Mr. Zhang. The principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include, but are not limited to, review and making
recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board; making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes; identify, selection or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors and relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. Pursuant to the
board diversity policy, the Nomination Committee will review
annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.
A number of measurable aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, industry
experience, technical and professional experience, skills and
knowledge, length of services and time to be devoted as a
director of the Company, would be considered to ensure that the
Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.
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In order to ensure gender diversity at the Board level, the
Company commenced identifying suitable female candidates
who have necessary skills and experience to join the Board
during the year. However, the Company had difficulty finding a
suitable candidate due to factors including the overall downturn
in real estate industry in the PRC. The Board will continue to
seek for the appointment of a female member by the timeline
stipulated in the Listing Rules (i.e. before 31 December 2024) to
ensure the diversity of the Board members based on the above
considerations. Prior to that, the Company will develop a pipeline
of potential successors to the Board based on the Company’s
director nomination policy to achieve gender diversity of the
Board.

The Company has also adopted a nomination policy, setting out
the approach for nominating and appointing a director either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the
existing Board subject to the Bye-Law of the Company. Selection
of candidates will be based on criteria including character,
qualifications, any potential contributions that the candidate
can bring to the Board and its diversity and the candidate’s
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge his/
her duties. Upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of a
new director and respective biographical information and details
of the candidate by any members of Nomination Committee, the
Nomination Committee will evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to assess
the independence of the retiring independent non-executive
directors, recommend the re-appointment of directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, update and review the
Board Diversity Policy to ensure that it aligns with the Listing
Rules.
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Remuneration committee

A remuneration committee of the Company had been
established by the Board with written terms of reference. The
remuneration committee comprises two executive directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee is chaired by Mr. Fok. The remuneration committee
is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its objective
of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management
of the highest caliber and experience needed to develop the
Group’s business successfully. The remuneration committee is
also responsible for the development of a fair and transparent
procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management of the Company and for
recommendation to their individual remuneration packages
having regard to, inter alia, the Group’s performance and
financial position, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Remuneration Committee met once to review the above matters.

Audit committee

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors (the “Audit Committee”) and reports to the board of
directors. A written terms of reference had been established.
The committee members performed their duties therein which
includes duties set out in the code provision D.3.3(a) to (n) of
Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
held three meetings in 2023 and reviewed the Group’s annual
results for 2022 and interim results for 2023; reviewed the audit
plans and findings of the external independent auditor; made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor and its remuneration; and reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems and financial matters
pursuant to its terms of reference. The Audit Committee meets
the external independent auditor at least once a year to discuss
any areas of concerns during the audits without the presence of
the management. The annual report for the year ended 2023 of
the Company has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as one of the essential elements in supporting the attainment of
its strategic objectives and sustainable development. The steps
taken in respect of gender diversity at Board level are stated in
the paragraphs under “Nomination Committee”.

The Company has also taken steps to promote diversity at all
levels of its workforce. Opportunities for employment, training
and career development are equally opened to all eligible
employees without discrimination. Various diversities’ comparison
in the workforce are set out in the ESG report of the annual
report of the Company. As at 31 December 2023, approximately
37% of the Company’s workforce (including the directors and
senior management) is female and approximately 63% is male.
The Board considered the current gender ratio of the overall
workforce is healthy and balance and target to keep such level in
the future.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group. In preparing the
financial statements, the Board has adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants that are relevant to its operations.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board has
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the fees paid/payable
to the auditor of the Company in respect of the audit services
and non audit services in 2023 were amounted to approximately
RMBO.7 million and RMBO0.3 million respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is responsible for determining and reviewing the
policies and performance for the corporate governance for the
Group. During the year, the management of the Company from
time to time reported to the Board for their review on various
policies and practices about corporate governance of the
Company, which included training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, Company’s
policies and practices on compliance of legal & regulatory
requirements and conduct of employees. In addition, the
corporate governance report together with other content of the
annual report was circulated for review and approval by the
Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems in order
to safeguard the interest of the Group and the Shareholders. The
Board conducted review and assessment of the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and procedures during the financial year ended 31 December
2023 by way of discussions among themselves and with the
management of the Group, members of the Audit Committee
and the external independent auditor. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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During the financial year, an external consultant has been
engaged to maintain the internal audit function for the Group to
assist the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The external consultant discussed with the executive
directors and senior management of the Group to identify
key business risks across the Group, and has adopted a risk-
based approach in developing the annual internal audit plan
with a focus on higher risk areas. Internal audit review was then
conducted in accordance with the annual internal audit plan. All
findings and recommendations on internal control deficiencies
for the year had been communicated to the management who
are required to establish remedial plans to correct those internal
control deficiencies and implement agreed action plans within
a reasonable time period. The Board and the Audit Committee
had reviewed the risk assessment results, internal audit planning
and internal audit reports submitted by the external consultant.
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the
Chairman and/or the executive directors on governance matters
and should also facilitate induction and professional development
of Directors. Details of the Company’s company secretary are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this report.

The Company Secretary took not less than 15 hours of relevant

professional training in the year ended 31 December 2023 as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may distribute dividends by way of cash or by
other means that the Board considers appropriate. Any proposed
distribution of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Board and, where applicable, the approval of the Shareholders.
The Board will consider various factors before declaring or
recommending any payment of dividends. These factors include
the results of operation of the business of the Group, the retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group, the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance, the general business conditions and
strategies, the Group’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans, the general economic conditions and
the future prospects of the business of the Group, shareholders’
interests, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividend and other internal or external factors that the Board
deems appropriate. The Board will review, from time to time, and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update
and/or modify the dividend policy of the Company at any time.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDER
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes in regular and timely communication
with shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders
understand its business better and the way the Company
operates. To promote effective communication with the public at
large, the Company maintains a website (http://www.760hk.com)
on which comprehensive information about the Company’s major
businesses, financial information and announcements, annual
and interim reports and shareholders circulars are being made
available.

All shareholders of the Company are given at least 20 clear
business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual
general meeting. According to the Listing Rules, the Board will
conduct voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting by
vote.
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SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHT

The Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a
Special General Meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Company, shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong, to require a special general meeting to
be convened by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may convene such
meeting in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act of Bermuda.

The Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act of
Bermuda, registered shareholders are entitled to put forward
proposals at general meetings if they (i) represent not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights at general meetings of the
Company at the date of deposit of the requisition; or (i) are not
less than 100 registered shareholders. The written requisition
stating the resolution(s) should be duly signed by the registered
Shareholder(s) concerned, accompanied by a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with must be
deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The requisition will be verified by the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
same is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will arrange
to include the proposed resolution in the agenda of the general
meeting.

The Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a
Person for Election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a director, please refer to the procedures made available in the
Company’s website.
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Putting enquiries to the Board

Information of the Group are communicated to the shareholders
mainly through general meetings, including annual general
meetings, financial reports, and its corporate communications
and other corporate publications on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. Any such questions shall
be first directed to the Company Secretary of the Company:

By post

Unit A704

3rd Floor, Tower A, New Mandarin Plaza
No. 14 Science Museum Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East

Hong Kong

By email

ir760hk@21cn.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the
shareholders’ meetings.

During the year, the Company has reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of various information dissemination and
communication methods as stated in this report, and considered
that the shareholders’ communication policy has been effectively
implemented during the year. The Company will continue to
maintain communication with shareholders and investors, and
review the shareholder communication policies on a regular basis
to ensure its effectiveness.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for directors’ securities
transactions. Having make specific enquiries of all directors of the
Company, they have confirmed that they complied with required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the accounting
period covered by the annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The By-Laws of the Company can be found in the website of the
Company.
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OVERVIEW

Pursuant to Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the “Guide”) contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Talent Property
Group Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group” or “we”), hereby presents this
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (“Report”)
to disclose ESG related matters that are relevant to the Group’s
business and have material impacts on the environment and
society for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “reporting
period”). Unless otherwise stated, the reporting period is from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE
Board’s Oversight of ESG Issues

To fulfil our corporate responsibility, the Group has established
ESG policies, infrastructure and framework to govern relevant
ESG practices and processes. The Group’s sustainability
governance structure comprises the Board of Directors (the
“Board”), the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
("ESG Committee”) and different line managers within the Group.
Their roles and responsibilities are as follows:

The Board: Directors meet semi-annually with ESG Committee
and senior management to review and provide direction on key
ESG matters, including:

° appropriateness and effectiveness of ESG governance
structure, strategy, management approach and internal
control system;

° material ESG risks and opportunities, as well as the
Group’s corresponding ESG policies and initiatives; and
° the Group’s ESG performance against ESG-related

targets.

In the second Board meeting of the year, the Board also reviews
and approves the disclosure of the Report.
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SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE (continued)
Board’s Oversight of ESG Issues (continued)

ESG Committee: A management-level ESG Committee,
comprising key management personnel of the Group, drives
the development and execution of ESG policies across different
functions, and manages and coordinates the ESG efforts of the
Group. The ESG Committee reports directly to the Board on
ESG issues and provides updates on latest development in ESG
regulatory requirements to the Board.

Line Managers: Managers across different functions and business
lines of the Group executes the established ESG initiatives, and
tracks and reports ESG performance to ESG Committee.

ESG Management Approach and Strategy

Our management approach is to run our business in an ethically,
socially and environmentally responsible manner, and to support
and connect with the local communities that we serve. We
primarily focus on emission control and energy efficiency while
maintaining excellent financial returns from business operation.
We also strive to explore viable initiatives to continuously create
value to stakeholders in a sustainable manner. Details of our
assessment of material ESG issues are described in the “Material
ESG Issues Assessment” section. Foreseeing challenges from
climate-related risks such as typhoon, heavy rainstorm and
flooding in the regions where our major property development
sites are located, the Group has implemented a range of
preventive measures to mitigate the impact to our business and
stakeholders.

Review of Progress Made against ESG-related Goals
and Targets

The Board regularly evaluates the Group’s progress on our
sustainability targets, which are expected to be achieved in five
years. During the reporting period, the Group has made steady
progress on the 5-year sustainability targets as described in
Section A1 and A2.
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MATERIAL ESG ISSUES ASSESSMENT ERRIR - B REABENTME
Stakeholder Engagement B ESH
The Group has proactively engaged with key stakeholders to ~ ZAfE@EFERE T B3 {H %L AT BRI EIR
understand their needs, opinions and expectations on key ESG  # - H @ REARTERENSTE - ﬁﬁ&,ﬁﬂ% '
issues, and has maintained continuous communication with them — WiEBIA TE éiﬁi{)ﬁiﬁﬁ?—r%@%
through the below channels:
External Internal
SpEB B
Shareholders &
Residents Investors Community & Media Employees
x=E BRRREREE HERER E&
e Regular visits e Annual general meetings e Official website e Direct communication
EHRFAR RRBEFRE B 7 A8uh HERR
e Complaint hotlines e Annual, interim and ESG e Press releases e Meetings
BIRER reports s eE
¢ Resident property FE - PHIANIRE - 112 o Media enquiries e Emails and hotlines
management RERME HEEEH BE R EH
FEWEEE e Circulars and press e Training programs

releases
iR K R E e

e Announcements on the

website of HKEX
HKEXA8 i T8 A &

EFIERIE

Government & Suppliers &

Regulators Business Partners Charitable Organisations
BREREEEN HAER R EB BN HEWE

e General liaison * Meetings e Corporate volunteering

—REE
e Communication on
policies

BRBRE

&
=

e Supplier review and
evaluation

HEREE hFHh

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#

ELET
e Collaborative projects
GYEHIER
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MATERIAL ESG ISSUES ASSESSMENT

(continued)
Strategic Focus Among Priority ESG Issues

The Group has assessed the materiality of key ESG issues
associated with the business and operations of the Group and
prioritized these issues according to their importance to the
business and relevant stakeholders during the reporting period.
The below key ESG issues are included in this Report.

RiE -  HERERHRE

BARER  HEREARENTMG
()

RE HEREABELEETNRBERN
REEHR - FEECTHESEELBREE
BB EERYE HEREAFEANEAL - ¥
REZSRAHEHRAAFHENEBILER
HERRF - ABEREUTEBRS  HER

PN
B BRRRE ©

Priority of
Focus Areas Materiality* Material ESG Issues Referencing Sections
EEMMN
BEHEE By BARE  #HERERHEE BEEH
Climate Change 1 Climate Risks and Hazards A4.  Climate Change
IR RixRER R BED RIREL
Climate Change 2 Climate Adaptation and Resilience ~ A4.  Climate Change
RIx FEH IR E b AR
Environmental Protection 3 Decarbonization A1.  Emissions
R RE i % HER
Environmental Protection 4 Greenhouse Gas Emission and A1.  Emissions
IRIBIRE Management BERR
RERBHMIEERE
Environmental Protection 5 Resource Management and A2. Use of Resources
IRIBIRE Circularity BIRERA
BIREEMAEIR A3.  The Environmental and
Natural Resources
REMBAER
Employment and Labour 6 Employee Rights and Welfare B1. Employment
Practices & BRI RABH %
ERERETIER B2. Health and Safety
fERME L2
B4. Labour Standards
L T AR
Employment and Labour 7 Occupational Health and Safety B2. Health and Safety
Practices BREEREZ D REREZ B
EEEBIER
Operating Practices 8 Responsible Supply Chain B5.  Supply Chain Management
=B IE D Management HERER
BREENHERERE
Community 9 Customer Health and Safety B6. Product Responsibility
oty BEFEERZ S EmEE
Community 10 Community Wellness and B8. Community Investment
R Engagement tEIEE
R R R 2R

*

In descending order

* BIRRR T
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RIE - B RERHRE

REPORTING BOUNDARY

To determine the scope and content of disclosure in this Report,
the Board has assessed the materiality of the Group’s operations
in terms of key factors such as financial, total assets, sales
volume, and the number of construction sites of each location of
the Group during the reporting period.

Based on the assessment result, the Group has decided to
include in this Report ESG matters that are relevant to property
investment, development and management businesses of all
companies controlled by the Group. The ESG performance of
Guangzhou Xintian Properties Development Limited, an associate
of the Group with effective interest of 30%, is not included in this
Report. No companies are newly added to the reporting scope
during the reporting period.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES APPLIED

& 5 E

REEABRENHRBELBENLAR EF2EUR
WEREE  REE  HEERLEESHBE
MERMHBEFARAZFEARELENSE
Atk -

ERNFHEER  AEEDRESEAREBIZG O
FIBERRINMERE BRIEEEXHHEM R
B e REAFEMARNRE - BN REH
EERARAA(AERERFH30%E R ES B
BRBMERR e REARAALEBMARE
F o REREL B EANAREHENRF -

FREER zH&ERA

Principle The Group’s Application

A rEEZER

Materiality The ESG topics included in this Report have been assessed by the Board and ESG Committee,
according to importance to business and stakeholders.

BARM AREMENRE HERECZECHEFTTHERE HSENERZESRBEHERLFNHENE

BT R -

Quantitative

g1t

Consistency

—t

Key performance indicators (“KPIs”) are used to measure and track the effectiveness of the Group’s
ESG performance. All information disclosed in this Report is prepared in accordance with the
Guide. Methodologies and assumptions adopted, as well as the sources of conversion factors used
for the calculation of KPIs are disclosed in this Report. Qualitative data are presented throughout
the report and in the Performance Tables in Appendix I.
RAREMER(EREZER D ARNEENRBASERE £ REAEMNARMYE - NRETH
BEHMAEIREESIRE - IERANTERBR - UEARGEERERERNEREFRIRR
RI|EANKE - BCBBEREERER KM E—KRIIKP 2T -

The ESG data presented in this Report are prepared using consistent methodologies to allow for
meaning comparison of the Group’s ESG performance over time unless otherwise specified in the
relevant part of the Report.

BRAREHEELD SEHBAIN  AREZINNRR L RERBBRA BN ERE - AELHB
EAREENRE HEREARRETAESRNLR -

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group strives to minimize adverse environmental
impact of its business operations by adopting
environmental protection practices over energy
consumption, use of resources and waste production.

A1. Emissions

The Group has established a mechanism to
collect emission data and evaluate significant
environmental impact brought by its operations.
The Group does not directly produce any significant
hazardous waste. Emissions caused by the
operations of the Group are primarily generated
from the consumption of electricity, paper and
petrol during its daily sales and office administration
activities. Environmental KPIs in connection
to our property investment, development and
management businesses during the reporting
period are disclosed below:

RE - HERERHS

B 55
REBENEIBRA A WEFOLTE - R
R REWELORARERE - T
BEHREHTHY BHERE -

Al. HEM

AEEC 7B SEBEREIE -
WA A EBEEEGRNRRETE
ZERME - AEBEVEAERESE
MEANBREY AEEZEEL
MR EEREREHERBAE
TBORETIEEE S - #oR KM
EA - REEHE - BRMANDE
RE  BREEEEBEEONRE
FRRERIERRENT

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-_F
Air Pollutants Emissions (Notes 1, 2)
ZERISRMER (ML - 2)
Nitrogen oxides (“NO,”) 5,319 g7 4,282 g%
a&ftmagltyl)
Sulphur oxides (“SO,”) 122 g% 102 g7e
ety matml)
Particulate matters (“PM”) 392 g% 315 g%
Ry ([REx])
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions
RERB(RERRE IR
Direct emission of GHG N/A (Note 2) N/A (Note 2)

BERBERIMN

Indirect emission of Carbon dioxide equivalent (“CO,e") (Note 3)

—atiEE( Z8ikg 2 ) MEH R (H:73)
CO,e per employee
BUREEM-_ELIRES

Non-hazardous Waste Produced (Note 4)
FrE £ K BIRBEY (Hfit4)

Paper waste disposed at landfills
BEFHIEE R RER

Waste disposed per employee
BREEZRENEY

TEA K Z2) NER(Hat2)
272,022 kg2 fr 355,538 kg A fr

1,572 kg2 fr 1,787 kg A fT
592 kg A fr 561 kg AT
3kgAfr 3kgAfT
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R - HEREBHRE

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1,

Emissions (continued)

Notes:

The Group does not engage in activities that:

> Consume gaseous fuel;
> Directly generate GHG; or
> Generate hazardous wastes.

Air pollutants emissions are generated from petrol
consumption by the Group’s six private vehicles
that are used for employee transportation.

The Group’s indirect CO,e emissions come from
electricity consumption and disposal of paper
waste in the office and at sales locations.

The Group has engaged qualified construction
contractors to manage the property development
projects. Non-hazardous waste produced during
property development activities is collected, treated
and disposed by construction contractors. These
wastes are not directly incurred and controlled by
the Group and are thus excluded from the Group’s
environmental data. In consideration of limited
paper waste volume, the Group disposes the waste
to landfills through the waste disposal channel
managed by the different buildings’ management
service providers.

MARBESBEARA A 2023F F#H

A

RE @)
Al. HER(E)
izt -
1. AEETENE
> SERER IR Y E S
> EEELBEREYE
C) =
> ELEERENZES -
2, 2o 5 R HE Y B AR E B S
HERERESOILADHD
SRR EE A o
3. REMBEE S E S5
MRERAERIEEDENE
NEREREAEE -
4. AEEEEABRRETLRE

BEREEWERRIER - E4&
TiEABENEE BREREER
MEBREBMELNIERR
BEY) c ZEBEYMAIFEAREE
BEEREERES - WTHAR
SEMRRBUED - ERER
BER AEETERBTRE
BT EERG M ERN E IR
MERERBESBEREAZHER
BRI °
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1,

Emissions (continued)

Emissions and waste produced at property
development construction sites are managed
by the construction contractors as stipulated
on the agreements with the contractors. Having
considered the environmental impact of the
contractors’ operations, management has required
the construction contractors to comply with
relevant laws and regulations. There are different
property management service providers for
managing waste disposals at different locations
of the Group. Regardless of the type of waste, we
closely monitor our contractors’ performance in
collecting, sorting and storing waste to avoid waste
leakage. During the reporting period, no incidences
of non-compliance with Environmental Protection
Law and Regulations on the Administration of
Construction Project Environmental Protection of
the People’s Republic of China and other relevant
laws and regulations with significant impact on the
environment and natural resources relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes were reported.

For emissions of air pollutants, the emission of
NO,, SO, _and PM for the reporting period remained
at a level slightly higher than that in the previous
reporting period. The emission of NO,, SO, and
PM for the reporting period was increased by
approximately 20%-24% as compared to the
previous period. Such rise was attributed to a
higher utilization of vehicles for business meetings
and property showcases due to the economic
recovery subsequent to the COVID-19 pandemic.

A.

IRIE - HERERERE
RE @)
A1, BER(E)

VEERER B E SN R
BEYI R EE TR R EERERDRE
FIEINHRER - KEREABHE
LEMNRBEYE  TEECENRE
EIREABSETHBERERE
B TRMESERGHERESIE
$%@TH%%W%%F@0%%
BEMELME  BMEEIEE
ELON) NS n@&ﬁﬁf%ﬁ
EHRIE - AT IEREYIRIR - IR
HHE BERESE(PFEAR
HABEIRIBREE)R(ERIBER R
ﬁ% EEEEPINTERETER
o ONEEEIFEERENK
K sk £ b BE R A R BB R FEfE
SEMELEEAMHRERBAE
RERERACENHMERERR
EHRTEHEERE -

HERGREMBERN T - RWED
B Astyw  mettyEENY
PR ER E—WEHREE S
KIFE - RIEEARE - REY - T
S KR B BE AR E - — EAfE
AN4I20% E24% BB N T H
MR COVID-19& B & & BB - 7

EEADERTESEREAS
EANFREL -
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R - HEREBHRE

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1,

Emissions (continued)

The indirect emission of greenhouse gases per
employee has reduced by 12% from 1,787 kg to
1,672 kg. The decrease in electricity consumption
during the reporting period was attributed to the
completion of construction projects in Yangzhou in
March 2023.

In respect of mitigating the emission and waste from
daily business operation, the Group established a
target in 2021 to control the year-on-year change in
emissions of greenhouse gas and air pollutants and
waste produced at no more than 20% for the next
5 years, given that there are no significant changes
to business operation and property projects. In the
reporting period, the Group achieved the target
by reducing indirect emission of carbon dioxide by
approximately 23%, along with a slight increase of
5% in waste produced, as compared to the prior
reporting period. For air pollutants emissions, there
was an approximate 20%-24% increase due to
the higher usage of the vehicles. The Group is fully
committed to addressing this issue by prioritizing
car maintenance on aged vehicles and closely
monitoring their emission data. We will continue to
closely monitor energy consumption and various
eco-friendly initiatives as described in Section A3,
as well as explore further adoption of renewable
energy and other green initiatives for emission
control.

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#

A.

RE®E)

A1,

BEm (&)

BN EEMNEEZEEEREIENRS
1,787 AT A 12% &1 ,572 AT °
WMEBEAEZR L TIRNE NG
THEER-ZZE-_=ZF=ZARTH
g( °

ML A REBREEENBERY
REDNE  EREBLERDE
FEEYESAEY  AEEENZ
TZ—FHIEERE  UEHAER
BE M ZE RS R EE A R T EE A R
MR AR AFH R L ET BB
20% o MR E I - REBEETIRZ
SR =] uk (= =290 11 = (74
B BERUR L #923% 1 BT EE A g
EYRE L II5% o 2RS4
R B A 2 1 00 M 4% AN 4Y20%
F24% c AEBTEEZEHHIR
= WEEEBEREE - O’
RERRE - RPISFET R
BER B R BASA T S ERIR
B RERE— PRAATHER
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A2,

Use of Resources

The Group does not engage in resources or
energy intensive business activities. The types
of energy consumed by the Group are mainly
electricity and petrol. Water usage for the Group’s
daily sales and office administration activities is
minimal where both water supply and discharge
are solely controlled by the office building’s
property management. No issues in water sourcing
were encountered during the reporting period. In
addition, the Group does not involve directly in the
use/purchase of packaging materials in the usual
course of business. Relevant Environmental KPIs in
connection with the use of resources in conducting
our business during the reporting period are
disclosed below:

R - tERERME

RIE @)

A2. EBRFER
AEETEREERRELRREN
¥BEE o NEEFTEFENARE
MEXBABHRAM - AEBAF
HERRAETBOESHRAKED
IKEI I R B2 B A KIEY
Mt o PNIREERT - WEA
KR EIRE o b4 AEER A
BEBBRTYEEESREEN
RO, - NREHE - A
R PIERESAAERNIEME
BRREREERENT

2023 2022
—EC-=H —E-F

Energy Consumption

RERUERE

Direct energy consumption from petrol fuel consumed
REFER VR EZ 8RB

Indirect energy consumption from electricity purchased
REFIESE BRI

Energy consumption per employee
BlEEREERER

79,061 kWhTEE 66,338 KWhT R
510,685 kWhT FE B 669,408 kWhT R B

3,409 kWh T R B 3,697 kWhF F B
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A2,

Use of Resources (continued)

The direct energy consumption for the reporting
period increased by 19% from 66,338 kWh to
79,061 kWh, which is a result of increased petrol
consumption due to the aforementioned increase in
vehicle usage.

The indirect energy consumption in the reporting
period reduced by 24% from 669,408 kWh to
510,685 kWh. Such reduction was attributed to the
reduction in electricity usage upon the completion
of the construction project in Yangzhou in March
2028.

Management is not aware of any incidences of
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
such as Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Energy Conservation {1 ZE A R M B &1 498805 % )
on the use of resources.

In respect of energy efficiency in daily business
operation, based on the analysis on the energy
consumption level in the prior reporting periods, the
Group established a target in 2021 to control the
year-on-year change of the electricity and petrol
consumption at no more than 20% for the next 5
years, given that there are no significant changes
to business operation and property projects.
Despite of the increase in energy consumption
from petrol fuel by 19% as compared to the prior
reporting period, the Group achieved the target by
reducing that from electricity of approximately 24%
in this reporting period. The Group will continue to
closely monitor energy consumption and various
eco-friendly initiatives as described in Section A3,
as well as explore further adoption of renewable
energy and other green initiatives for improving
energy efficiency.

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#

A.

RE®E)

A2,

ERFERE)
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A3.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of business and operations, the
Group's business has no direct and significant
impacts on the environment and natural resources.
Nonetheless, the ESG Committee regularly
assesses the environmental risk exposure of the
Group. Should there be any subsequent changes
to the relevant legislation or the Group’s operation,
the ESG Committee will report such changes to the
Board and adopt additional measures, if necessary,
to minimize the Group’s impact on the environment
and natural resources.

We have implemented a number of eco-friendly
initiatives to promote efficient use of resources and
energy conservation:

> Switch off lights during lunch hours;

> Set air-conditioning at an optimal
temperature;

> Pre-set the printers to two-sided printing

mode, and post paper-saving reminders
near photocopy machines; and

> Promote reuse and recycle of paper by
placing recycling boxes in the office.

In the future we will continuously adopt the above
or other additional eco-friendly measures with the
aim to maintain a reasonable level of, or further
reduce, the emissions, electricity consumed and
paper waste produced during the operations of
the Group’s property investment and management
business.

A.

IRIE - HERERERE
RE @)
A3. BERBRER
MR REENS  AEEME

B EERERARERBRER
EAFE -BENM  RE HE
RERZBEE PN EAEENR
ERR o HERAPI S AREE L
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BHEREREREEHIER
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A4.

Climate Change

We have identified and assessed the impact of
climate-related risks such as typhoon, heavy
rainstorm and flooding in the regions where we
carry out our business. No imminent climate
risks are identified during the reporting period.
Nonetheless, in order to mitigate the above physical
climate risks, we have developed safety and
evacuation policy for typhoon risk and circulated
emergency response plan for the Group for
improving typhoon awareness and preparedness
of our employees and contractors. In the event of a
natural disaster, Employees and contractors would
be notified via timely emails and text messages.
In addition, we also perform regular inspection of
climate-resilient facilities at construction sites such
as drainage and windbreak netting to minimize the
impact of the above climate risks.

We will be actively establishing internal policy and
monitoring any regulatory changes and relevant
industry standards in our major business regions to
better adapt to and manage climate-related risks.
No significant transition risks are identified during
the reporting period.

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#
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B. SOCIAL B. #&
Employment and Labour Practices EEREIESR
B1. Employment B1. {EfE
The Group is committed to complying with relevant REBH N ETERBRBEMERK
labour standards and employment laws and MBS TR REREEIER -
regulations which are applicable to our business. AEBEEILZEANERBRE &
The Group has developed comprehensive human 5ol EEETHE  @HE - B
resources policies and guidelines to govern KR ERE 7 LA K (B B T R AR BB
staff recruitment, compensation, promotion and o AEE TR DR BEXERES
dismissal processes, and employees’ working FREREHKE - WHR TESAM
hours and rest periods. The Group also endeavours ERERAER o AmEHHE - #
to provide equal opportunities throughout EREFBEA(PEARLNMES
recruitment and employment and to combat all FEOIREERBRRELEIFERBKREXN
forms of discrimination in workplace. During the FENHMMBEEZRERNT
reporting period, no incidences of non-compliance AHEH RZTEZ=F+=A
with Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China =+—B  KAEBEEFTBEI173ME
and other relevant laws and regulations that have 8 HAREE - NWREHHE - FH
imposed a significant impact on employment and RMEENIEEBRESEZEHE
labour practices were reported. As at 31 December s
2023, the Group has a total of 173 employees and
all of them are employed full time. Employment
KPIs in connection with our business during the
reporting period are disclosed below:
. Total Workforce . BE) B
By Gender By Age Group
B RIE S BREBRHERIZS

22.6%

< 30 years old
ﬂ ﬂ /NFB0BR
63.0% 37.0%
Male Iz‘rgale
S 31.2%
30-39 years old
30£395%
By Employee Category 0 By Geographical Location
RESEADS Seff’ BHERIEES 1.2%
Management Hong Kong
EREEAR B
10.4% 98.8%
Middle
Management 0,
Employees
—RES
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RIE - B RERHRE

B. SOCIAL (continued) B. #&w@
Employment and Labour Practices (continued) EEREZEIER(E)
B1. Employment (continued) B1. {EEE)
. Employee Turnover . BERKE

The Group highly values the contribution
made by employees along the business
development and recognizes the importance
of employee attraction and retention. A
turnover rate of 16.1% has been reported
during the reporting period. Relevant
employment turnover KPIs in connection
with our business during the reporting period
are disclosed below:

By Gender 1% 51215

[ ]
Female 51.6%
Male o
St

By Geographical Location
BN EE S

Hong Kong 0,
9| 0.0%

L 42.7%

By Age Group #FE 4051215

40 years old
and above
405 A E

30-39 years old
30%39 7%

28.8%
51.9%
56.4%

< 30 years old
NAB05%

MARBESBEARA A 2023F F#H

AEBBEEREEHEY
EROB/MARZRD RS
BEREMEZH - RikE
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BREAMMBRBEERRAX@R
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RIE - HGRERRE

B. SOCIAL (continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

B2,

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe
workplace for its employees in all locations.
The Group also protects employees from
occupational hazards by providing them with
sufficient protective equipment and annual health
check-up. Safety guidelines are stipulated in the
Employee Handbook, which are distributed to all
employees. Employees are encouraged to report
any occupational hazards to the Group. Should
there be any reported hazards, Administration
Department will investigate the cases, report to
the senior management and take remedial actions
in a timely manner. In response to the COVID-19
pandemic from January to February 2023, the
Group continued flexible work arrangement and
distributed masks and sanitizers to all employees.
Employees are encouraged to work from home
during the city-wide lockdown in China. Employees
are required to measure body temperature and
sanitize hands before entering the workplace in
order to minimize the risk of outbreak at workplace.

During the reporting period, the Group was in
compliance with Law of the People's Republic
of China on Work Safety, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, and other relevant laws
and regulations relating to the provision of a safe
working environment and protection of employees
from occupational hazards which are applicable to
the Group’s business. The Group has also ensured
that all employees are covered by the Social
Insurance plan. No work-related injuries or fatalities
were reported in the past three years including the
reporting period, and hence, no lost days due to
work injury were noted.
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B. SOCIAL (continued) t=2@m
Employment and Labour Practices (continued) EBERSZIER(E)
B3. Development and Training B3. ZERIE
The Group places great emphasis in developing AEEEEERESER - 2HA
our employees and providing both internal and B K HNER B T35 )| LA D0 ok 1% 55 0 3
external staff training to enhance their knowledge RMEAT - AEEBEILIFIIBRE I
and skills. The Group has developed a Training EREIEBEEE c ERESTR
Policy to govern training related matters. Each year, BIEINERKPAERFRIEIEE - A
management prepares a Training Budget to allocate NEEHMERTEILER - RIS
sufficient resources for staff development based on Hif - = HERTASRE M
the results of Training Requirement Survey. Both B BRMH T 435055 3/ 89 R BF
internal trainings and external trainings organized RAONEREEFI - RERE BRI - AR
by third-party recognised organizations with MR Z R RIS IR ER
approximate 350 training hours were provided to BRYRIT -
our employees during the reporting period. Relevant
development and training KPIs in connection with
our business during the reporting period are shown
below:
. Distribution of Employees Trained . ZiE & H1h
By Gender &£ 51215 By Employee Category Z{ESERI21%
General
Female /8 11.0% R 20
- -
Management
ERERAR
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SOCIAL (continued) B. #gw®)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued) EBERSITER(E)
B3. Development and Training (continued) B3. ZERZI(E)
. Training Hours . =l
By Gender &t RI%1% By Employee Category iZ{ES 5%
Senior
—vvyY_ KL e
i 350 Middle 0
Management
vae & | O wgEEAR | O
Bt General
uje ot s as0

ini H ==y 8 etz
| EEn e hoursi)ier employee trained &2 HI1{E R 3 5HIR B I Average training hours per employee trained &5 3I{g & F55 15 &
I Total training hours 4255 3)1|F5 1 N

B4.

M Total training hours #5531 5

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to complying with Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
labour standards relevant to the Group’s business.
The Group has established a policy to prohibit child
and forced labour. Management has also taken
reasonable and necessary steps in the recruitment
process to ensure that there are no deviations from
the Group policy and objectives. Employees are
encouraged to report any suspected cases of child
or forced labour at workplace via email. During the
reporting period, there were no reported incidences
of non-compliance with Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other relevant laws and
regulations that have imposed a significant impact
on employment and labour practices.
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B.

SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices

BS.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers who have provided products or services
with an aggregate value of RMB50 million or
above are considered as our major suppliers. All
the nine major suppliers are located in Mainland
China. The Group has established a contract
policy and corresponding evaluation procedures to
govern the selection of suppliers and construction
contractors. To ensure product and service quality,
and to manage environmental and social risks in
supply chain, the Group only engages suppliers
and construction contractors with licenses that
are granted by relevant regulators or government
authorities. We only engage suppliers who
provide environmental preferable products and
services that fulfill the national requirements of
Environmental Protection Standards issued by the
Ministry of Environmental Protection of China and
Environmental Protection Department of Hong
Kong. Relevant certifications are inspected during
supplier selection. The obligations of suppliers
and contractors with respect to environmenta
protection and compliance with relevant safety
laws and regulations are clearly stated in signed
contracts. We also ensure the fair and reasonable
treatment of all suppliers and contractors in our
practices.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)

BS.

B6.

Supply Chain Management (continued)

We require our suppliers and contractors to
follow the Code of Conduct set out by the Group
to encourage them to comply with all legal
requirements and ethical business practices.
Contractors are required to adhere to applicable
laws and regulations in their operations. They need
to adopt relevant measures to create a healthy,
safe, fair and corruption-free working environment.
The Code also encourages suppliers and service
providers to mitigate negative environmental
impacts and to improve their environmental
performance. Besides, we periodically review and
evaluate the environmental performance of our
major suppliers and assess whether their business
practices impose severe environmental and social
risks to the Group. If any non-compliance or
significant risk has been noticed, the Group would
take immediate action to rectify and enhance
monitoring. If the situation persists, the Group would
consider not to renew further business contracts
with the supplier.

Product Responsibility

The Group recognizes the importance of health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
related to products and services provided by the
Group. The Group has established relevant policies
to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and to fulfil its corporate responsibility
towards the customers.
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B.

SOCIAL (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)

B6.

Product Responsibility (continued)

The Group closely monitors the development
projects at every stage to ensure that project
development, construction process and product
quality are in compliance with Construction Law
of the People’s Republic of China and other
applicable laws and regulations, and requires
construction contractors to immediately resolve
any defects or non-compliance incidences, where
necessary. The Group has entered contracts
with construction contractors to obtain their
commitment to carry out necessary operational
and quality assurance activities, and to comply
with regulatory requirements. The Group has also
established property acceptance procedures to
ensure that the properties are ready for delivery to
our customers in pursuant to the sales agreements.
During the reporting period, there are no reported
cases of non-compliance of Construction Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other applicable
laws and regulations, recalls of properties or
significant complaints from customers.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)

B6.

Product Responsibility (continued)
Protection of intellectual property rights

The Group strictly abides by applicable
requirements stipulated in related intellectual
property protection laws and regulations, such
as the Copyright Law of the People's Republic
of China and Trademark Law of the People's
Republic of China. All the software used by the
Group is legally obtained through subscription.
Verification and inspection of software copyrights
are conducted on an ongoing basis by the Group.
The Group has also established a comprehensive
intellectual property management approach for
self-developed intellectual properties for effective
protection from infringement. Additionally, the
trademarks of the Group including “Talent
Property”, “$TAH1E” and “¥1 K=" are registered
in both Hong Kong and China to avoid any
infringement.

Consumer data protection and privacy policies

The Group highly recognizes the importance of
consumer data protection by establishing and
implementing various privacy policies. In order to
avoid data breach and manipulation, access to the
property contracts with sensitive consumer data
are restricted to authorized persons only. They are
also regularly monitored and maintained through
various data privacy tools.
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B.

SOCIAL (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)

B7.

Anti-corruption

The Group strives to create a corporate culture
that embraces integrity, honesty and fairness, and
is committed to conducting its business in the
absence of any undue influences. Requirements
and guidelines relating to the prevention of
bribery, extortion and fraud are stipulated in the
Employee Handbook and other relevant ethics-
related internal policies so as to communicate the
Group’s requirements and to provide guidance to
employees in carrying out business and operational
duties. The Employee Handbook and internal
policies are subject to periodic review, and updates
are made, when necessary, to ensure that they
are in line with the latest development of Criminal
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China for Countering
Unfair Competition and other applicable laws and
regulations. To minimize the ESG risks embedded
in our business operations, we maintain stringent
internal control and risk management systems.
Abiding by the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group
has had no incidents of non-compliance to such
Ordinance. Management and staffs follow the anti-
bribery policies of the Group, upholds honesty,
integrity and fairness in all aspects of our business.
We maintain zero tolerance of any form of bribery.
All transactions are required to be documented in
an accurate, complete and timely manner, in order
to maintain a high degree of transparency and to
minimize the risk of bribery in the Group.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)

B7.

Anti-corruption (continued)
Whistle-blowing mechanism

The Group encourages all internal and external
stakeholders to report misconduct or unethical
business behaviours. Employees and suppliers can
file written reports via email to the mailbox specified
in Employees Handbook, employment contracts as
well as business contracts.

All allegations will be independently investigated
by Administration Department with the assistance
of relevant departments and business functions.
Independent senior management review the
investigation results and provide direction on
corrective actions. Investigation results and
progress of corrective actions are reported to the
Board where appropriate.

Anti-corruption training

The Group takes specific measures to encourage
integrity among employees. Our anti-corruption
and ethics-related policies are circulated and
well-explained to both employees during the
onboarding process and external suppliers before
arranging contract signing. The Group has been
developing the learning materials on anti-corruption
in the reporting period. The Group will hold anti-
corruption seminars and provide relevant learning
materials for all employees in 2023 to maintain
employees’ awareness towards anti-corruption and
all forms of unethical business behaviours.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)
Community
B8. Community Investment

The Group has taken the communities’ interests
into consideration when conducting business. It is
of our great desire to minimize the negative impact
of our operational activities to the community.
All employees are encouraged to participate in
community activities and charitable activities as
contribution to the society.

o Public Health

In response to COVID-19 pandemic from
January to February 2023, the Group has
spared no efforts in social contributions
by engaging in a number of enhanced
measures to reduce the risk of COVID-19
outbreak in the community. Our employees
have been actively engaged in the following
community activities:

> Distributed RAT test kits to the
community;

> Delivered packs of food and
necessities to COVID-19 infected
individuals under home quarantine;
and

> Over 100 employees participated
in various anti-pandemic initiatives
of the government such as Health
Code inspection and supporting the
execution of nucleic acid testing in
the community.

o Community Welfares

The Group has established the Rental
Concession Scheme for properties and
offered eligible tenants with rent concessions
or waivers to lighten their economic
pressure resulting from the adverse impact
of COVID-19 pandemic, amounting to
approximately RMBO0.6 million under the
scheme from March to July 2023.
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APPENDIX | - SOCIAL PERFORMANCE g — — e RASIXK
TABLES
Employment Practice EBEER
2023 2022
—E-= T

Total Workforce HWEB A
Total Number of Employees BEBAE 173 199
By Gender MR
Male B 109 121
Female 4 64 78
By Employment Contract BREREN
Full-time employees HEE 173 199
Part-time employees *BEE = =
By Age Group BRERA
Under 30 30BRIA T 39 47
30-39 30E3975% 54 68
40 and above 407 S PA £ 80 84
By Employee Category ZIESER
Senior management SREEE 11 15
Middle management FRERE 18 18
General employees TEES 144 166
By Geographical Location BBV E
Mainland China B R B 171 197
Hong Kong B 2 2
Total Employee Turnover BEHRAE
Employee Turnover Rate EERAE 42.2% 16.1%
Percentage of Employee Turnover by BEREBINEERKLR

Gender
Male EXL 36.7% 17.4%
Female i 51.6% 14.1%
Percentage of Employee Turnover by Age ZRE#HARESNESR KR

Group
Under 30 305 AT 56.4% 23.4%
30-39 30E395% 51.9% 20.6%
40 and above 407 B PA £ 28.8% 8.3%
Percentage of Employee Turnover by ERiWEBENBE S NEERKLER

Geographical Location
Mainland China B KB 42.7% 16.2%
Hong Kong BE - -
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APPENDIX | - SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

TABLES (continued)

By ik — - ERE IR @)

Development and Training R B
2023 2022
—E=-= —F=-=

Development and Training for Workforce {EE /IR EE
Total number of employees trained ZollE B g 7 13
Total number of training hours 4R L% 50 B 350 534
Percentage of Employees Trained by EMRESHNZIEET DL

Gender
Male Eofs - 1.1%
Female 4 11% 17.0%
Percentage of Employees Trained by REEEREIHNZIESE

Employee Category Aot
Senior management BREEE - 6.7%
Middle management PRERERE - 11.1%
General employees LTiEES 4.9% 6.0%
Average Training Hours Completed per EHRBSNEREEES RN

Employee by Gender Fg 5N
Male S - 16
Female 4 50 43
Average Training Hours Completed per RERERE I NERES

Employee by Employment Category 5T B 1512 /N BE Y
Senior management aBRERE = 8
Middle management RREEE = 41
General employees TiRER 50 44
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associate
are set out in notes 41 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property
development, investment and management in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business and an analysis
using financial key performance indicators are provided in
the “Chairman’s Statement” and the “Business and Financial
Review”, respectively, from pages 4 to 7 and pages 8 to 16
of this Annual Report. A description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, a discussion on the Group’s
environmental policies and performance and an account of the
Group’s key relationships with its stakeholders are stated therein.
The above discussions form part of the Report of the Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate amount of sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than
30% of the Group’s total sales for the year. Whereas, purchases
of the Group’s five largest suppliers and contractors accounted
for 96% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from
the largest supplier and contractor included therein amounted to
32% of the total purchases.

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”)) nor those shareholders (which, to the knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers or contractors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
and the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statement on pages
76 to 79 and page 210.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 83 to 84 and note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SUBSTANTIAL INVESTMENTS AND
ACQUISITIONS

There was no substantial investment and acquisition.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in notes 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties and plant and equipment of the Group are set out
in notes 14 and 15 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

FINANCIAL SUMMARY BEREE
Consolidated Results mE¥EA

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=fF —FT-— T ZTTF —T-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AEBETT AREFT AEBETT AREFT

Revenue W 766,732 276,113 343,992 348,216 277,653

Profit/(loss) before income & FriS i Bl

tax swmAL (EE) 6,781 (1,364) 197,239 (116,132) (176,290)
Income tax expenses FTiSHif X (40,557) (37,784) (33,209 (74,0806) (14,817)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(ER),=F (33,776) (39,148) 164,030 (190,168) (191,107)

(Loss)/profit attributable to: ] A FEAE

(EB18),mF
Owners of the Company RARHERA (33,776) (39,148) 164,030 (100,868) (99,844)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR - - - (89,300) (91,263)

(33,776) (39,148) 164,030 (190,168) (191,107)
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Consolidated Assets, Equity and Liabilities

mEEE REkEE

As at 31 December

®+=A=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=fF T —E-—F ZZT-FF T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFT AREFT ARETT ARETFT ARETFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IERBEE 753,158 911,632 1,090,409 979,312 1,022,373
Current assets RENVEE 2,395,552 3,118,981 3,130,248 3,287,386 3,002,084
3,148,710 4,030,613 4,220,657 4,266,698 4,025,357
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities mEBE 1,263,422 1,851,182 2,037,299 1,862,199 1,588,253
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 249,627 509,295 474,771 806,889 629,081
1,513,049 2,360,477 2,512,070 2,669,088 2,217,334
EQUITY S
Attributable to: THALTFEN :
Owners of the Company KAEEAA 1,635,461 1,669,936 1,708,387 1,746,972 1,848,085
Non-controlling IEPE R
interests 200 200 200 (149,362) (40,062)
Total Equity T 4RER 1,635,661 1,670,136 1,708,587 1,597,610 1,808,023
DIRECTORS BE

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Gao Bin (Chairman)
Mr. LUO Zhangguan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LO Wai Hung
Mr. MAK Yiu Tong
Mr. FOK Chi Tat Michael

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all of the directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election. Mr.
Luo Zhangguan and Mr. Mak Yiu Tong will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 19
of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of independent non-executive directors, had entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of two years and
each of these contracts is subject to termination by either party
giving not less than 1 month’s written notice.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract, which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) had any business which was considered to
compete or was likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2023, the interest or short position of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

MIE =] n,J

REEAR - BREBESLIN j’Iﬁ‘ETIEJZEETﬁﬁ
BAARNRIREBEBHEMEELH 2 EERITH
ZEH) -

EERITHRAEN A QB S A 85
EEZ RS - EERO R ERE2E
#wRER

RZBZ=F+-A=+—H  EFRITHEH
AR R S CH A MBI E B (R E 5 R A GG
([FEHREEEG ) BEXVEZ RE) 25 - 48
B EREES - %&E/JETF 5 R EE 501
EXVELET R8m P BAAR 563X PR R aR Bk
mE (@%ﬁf&ﬁﬁ%}%m%ﬁiﬁﬂfﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ%@i%&
BAREEB 2 E=mER) HARERAR
RIRIBEFEHF R BEKROEISGHEATE LS
mftRsEmEREE - IRBRETRISITE
HMARNE REE R PTAIER R A Ty Tt

Percentage of the

Capacity/ Company’s issued
Name of director Nature of interest Number of shares share capital
QR E#IT
EEnE B REEME KRG #E RAB DL
Zhang Gao Bin Personal 6,681,250 1.29%
R=A fEA
Interest in controlled corporation 323,719,696 62.90%
TS P2 IR e
Luo Zhangguan Personal 69,000 0.01%
EEWE A
Mak Yiu Tong Personal 7,500 0.00%
HIRE fEA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2023, the interests or short
positions of substantial shareholders (other than Directors or
the chief executives of the Company) in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
SFO or were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

EEEWMEE

FERRRAQAROGREBERD 2
EBERER

BARBEETRITRAEMAM R_FT_=F
TZA=1T—R0 ZERR(ARFAEFHTH
AEERIN) R AR B D SARRR R (D A IR IR &
MG GRGIEXVEFE2 K35 ZH R X AR A A Al
BEIXNARBRIERE 7 M HIE RG] £ 336 %5
FAGEzERMIE s RS EAWT ¢

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
underlying issued
Name Note shares interest share capital
AR RABE BT
=L g3 RO EZHE &N
Talent Trend Holdings Limited 1 323,719,696 62.90%
Note: Hat
() The entire issued share capital of Talent Trend Holdings Limited is (1) Talent Trend Holdings Limited & #f 2 3 1T A& 4~

directly, beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Gao Bin.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share option scheme of the Company that adopted on 20 May
20183 was expired during the year. No options were granted,
exercised, cancelled, lapsed or remained outstanding during the
year ended 31 December 2023.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of shares or other
securities of the Company by the Company or its subsidiaries
during the year.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as the related party transactions as set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements which were fully exempt
from the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, the Group did not enter into any other
connected or continuing connected transactions during the
financial year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set out on
pages 20 to 31 of the annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
FROM INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Company’s directors.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining shareholders of the Company
who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 17 June 2024, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 12 June 2024
to 17 June 2024, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the annual general meeting, all transfer
documents should be lodged for registration with Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 11 June 2024.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be tabled in the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Zhang Gao Bin
Chairman

Hong Kong, the PRC
27 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE S

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

FRER eIt ER ERATAR R E

To the Shareholders of Talent Property Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Talent
Property Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
collectively referred to as (“the Group”) set out on pages 68 to
212, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

The key audit matter

B BE R E S
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BEFELER

As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of investment properties
of the Group was RMB500,100,000.

Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management of the Group to determine the fair value of the
investment properties. To support the fair value determined by
the management of the Group, the Group engaged an external
valuer to perform valuations on the investment properties at the
end of the reporting period.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the estimation of fair
value of investment properties are included in Notes 2, 4 and 14.

RZZE-_=F+-A=+—H  E£BEEKED
EHAFEEAEARKES500,100,000T ©

BEEEEREEE T REMENAFEFTEFLE
RGFHMEE - B EEEEEEEEQT
B BEREEFIBEEMNRSHRERE
WFREITEE -

BEHRBEMELFENSTHRRMBEEERER
BizE2 - 414 °

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2023 69



70

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

FEEEXEEE)
REWEWGEE)

EERBLRNNEERARERER

We assessed the valuer’s independence, qualifications and
expertise and read their terms of engagement with the Group
to determine whether there were any matters that might have
affected their objectivity or whether there were scope limitations
imposed upon their work.

We compared inputs to the valuation model, on a sample basis,
with the Group’s records, which included underlying lease
agreements and documentation, details of number of property
units held for investment purposes and current rents.

We discussed with the external valuer and the management
regarding the reasonableness of methodology and key
assumptions being used.

We performed site visits accompanied by the management of the
Group for investment properties.

Net realisable value assessment of the Group’s
properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

The key audit matter
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HREELER

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held properties under
development and completed properties held for sale amounted
to RMB438,000,000 and RMB1,745,582,000 respectively, net
impairment loss of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale amounted to RMB24,271,000 and
RMB73,835,000 were recognised during the year ended 31
December 2023, as disclosed in Notes 19 and 20 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.

The estimation of the net realisable value (“NRV”) of properties
under development and completed properties held for sale
required the management of the Group to estimate the selling
prices based on prevailing market conditions, less costs to
complete and sell the properties. To support the estimation
of NRV, the Group engaged an external valuer to estimate
the current market value of the completed properties held for
sale and properties under development. Given that the Group
had significant amounts of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale and that the management’s
determination of the NRV required the management of the Group
to exercise significant judgment, we concluded that the NRV
assessment as one of the key audit matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Net realisable value assessment of the Group’s
properties under development and completed
properties held for sale (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BYZEMBRES
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We assessed the valuer’s independence, qualifications and
expertise and read their terms of engagement with the Group
to determine whether there were any matters that might have
affected their objectivity or whether there were scope limitations
imposed upon their work.

We discussed with the valuer and the management the
methodology and assumptions used in determining the current
market value of the properties.

We obtained cost to completion budgeting and compare with
that in previous year and checked to the additional construction
contract on a sample basis. We obtained the understanding to
the internal control of payment cycle of construction cost for
completeness.

We performed site visits accompanied by the management of the
Group for the properties.

Specifically, with regard to completed properties held for sale, we
sample-checked the current market value of properties used by
the valuer to the adjusted market prices of comparable properties
in the similar location near the end of the reporting period and
determined whether there was any significant variance.

With regard to the properties under development, we discussed
with the management of the Group and the valuer how they
arrived at the estimated percentage of completion, the estimated
selling prices when they are completed and the estimated costs
to complete, and checked to the source data on a sample
basis. Further, we compared the market value determined by
the valuer with the carrying amount of the properties recorded
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements to see whether
adequate impairment loss had been provided.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify your opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that

we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B EEN RS E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE REMRBR GRS BHRRNEE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we B EHEBREZESQEBNEIED - RTHLLE
determine those matters that were of most significance in the B APLAUBERENBXIERAEE -
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current MEKBEREZEE - BIDERTVERTBTHA
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe FEBHZEE  IRNBEENBRT  BER
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation AFEBEHZEEBEJABEHNTREREBHA
precludes public disclosure about the matter of when, in REBMSEENFEZMAERBREPHE &
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter BIEZ @MW ZSMRE P ZER -

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED ST ERMERAR
Certified Public Accountants (Practising) HESE AT

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024 B —EZNF=A=++tH
Ho Wan Nei DS

Practising Certificate number: PO6991 NEBERS - P06
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e RkEMEEWARE

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2023 2022
—EB-= —ZE-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR#FT AREFT
Revenue g 5 6 766,732 276,113
Cost of sales and services HE KRS AL A (578,018) (177,489)
Gross profit EF 188,714 98,624
Other revenue oA U 5 7 4,028 9,452
Distribution costs 2 EHA AR (13,204) (9,576)
Administrative and other THRHAAS LR
operating expenses (40,112) (60,178)
Fair value changes on investment & & ¥ 2 N\ FEEE
properties (54,749) (49,445)
Fair value changes on a financial AF{EFFABZMNEMEEZ
asset at FVTPL NEEE = 3,294
(Impairment loss)/reversal of BRAMECIERE),JRE
impairment loss of properties 5 E RO
under development (24,271) 45,456
Impairment loss of completed BIEREZERTITYEZRE
properties held for sale &5 18 (73,835) -
Reversal of expected credit B RKERTEREEHE
losses for trade receivables R El 121 62
Share of result of an associate 71 — & A 7] 245 18 42,415 (4,427)
Finance costs BhE AR 8 (22,326) (34,626)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRELADER,(EE) 9 6,781 (1,364)
Income tax expense FriS i 2 12 (40,557) (37,784)
Loss for the year EEEE (33,776) (39,148)
Loss attributable to: THALEMLESE
Owners of the Company PN/NEIEZZEWN (33,776) (39,148)
Non-controlling interests eI - -
(33,776) (39,148)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEBRERkEMEERARRE

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2023 2022
—_=E2-= —E-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR#FT AREFT
Other comprehensive (loss)/ EEHM2E(ERE), WA
income for the year
ltems that may be reclassified HEgrgEaln Bz Bam
subsequently to profit or loss: EH :
Exchange differences on MEBINETS 2 BTk 2
translation of financial PE N ZERE
statements of foreign
operations (699) 697
Other comprehensive (loss)/ EEHMEEH(EE) WA
income for the year (699) 697
Total comprehensive loss for FE2EEEHAE
the year (34,475) (38,451)
Total comprehensive loss THATEMEZEEEALE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RABEAR A (34,475) (38,451)
Non-controlling interests IEPER = = =
(34,475) (38,451)
RMB RMB
ARH AR
(Restated)
(&&&E5))
Loss per share EREE 13
Basic and diluted HAK#E (6.6) cent? (7.6) cent?
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ira BEUIR R &

(As at 31 December 2023) (R=FE==4#+=A=+—H)

2023 2022
—E-=E —=ET-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR FT ARETFr
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENERE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties EYHE 14 500,100 552,700
Plant and equipment MR K&RE 15 9,106 7,818
Intangible assets mEE 17 3,510 -
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 1,755 3,509
Interests in an associate R—EEE R e 2= 18 238,687 346,135
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - e R HMAmER
other receivables BRI 22 - 354
Deferred tax asset RETRIBE E 29 - 1,116
753,158 911,632
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development  ZEREH Y2 19 438,000 523,054
Completed properties held BIEREZER T
for sale 20 1,745,582 2,352,041
Trade receivables JE AR R 21 967 2,609
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIA ~ e RAMEL
other receivables BRI 22 73,542 133,483
Tax recoverable AR O] 718 18,201 30,934
Cash and cash equivalent BB EEY 23 119,260 76,860
2,395,552 3,118,981
Current liabilities piEIN=NE
Trade payables FETBRFK 24 377,650 518,579
Accruals and other payables FEETE A KA MR IR 25 96,993 100,984
Contract liabilities aHAaE 26 369,896 765,802
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 2,024 1,729
Provision for tax RIS 400,139 372,728
Borrowings R 28 16,720 91,360
1,263,422 1,851,182
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,132,130 1,267,799
Total assets less current MEERTRBERE
liabilities 1,885,288 2,179,431
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

42 A
2 Ny =]

B AR 2R

(As at 31 December 2023) (R=F==4F+=-HA=+—H)

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR¥ T AREToT
Non-current liabilities FnBERE
Lease liabilities HEaE 27 - 2,024
Borrowings B 28 106,536 347,096
Deferred tax liability EEREAE 29 143,091 160,175
249,627 509,295
Net assets EEFE 1,635,661 1,670,136
EQUITY s
Share capital %N 30 37,628 37,628
Reserves HiE 31 1,597,833 1,632,308
Equity attributable to the R RVER AEGERE
owners of Company 1,635,461 1,669,936
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR T 200 200
Total equity R 1,635,661 1,670,136
Zhang Gao Bin Luo Zhangguan
REE BEW
Director Director
= =3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘/—_]_\ EE@/)H:E%E

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2023 2022
—E-= —_EF_—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR¥FT AREFT
Cash flows from operating REEKRIMBZHERE
activities
Profit/(loss) before tax BRELADR ], (EE) 6,781 (1,364)
Adjustments for: FEE
Interest income on financial REHEN AR EREE
assets carried at amortised B WA
costs 7 (3,616) (6,079)
Fair value changes on WEYWHERNFEE
investment properties 14 54,749 49,445
Fair value changes on a BAFEFABZNEHE
financial asset at FVTPL EXNTFEEZ = (3,294)
Reversal of expected credit FEUL BR NFE A= B S 1B m
losses for trade receivables 9 (121) (62)
Management fee income from  FEUR —EEE =R al'E B B I
an associate A 7 (33) 6)
Interest income on loan to an MY —EBERRIERZF
associate BURA 7 (104) (a7
Impairment loss/(reversal of BRPYEZREBE,
impairment loss) of properties CRERS1EREE)
under development 24,271 (45,456)
Impairment loss of completed FIEREZERIME
properties held for sale WIEEE 73,835
Share of result of an associate ~ #{h—EEEE AT ¥EE 18 (42,415) 4,427
Finance costs BhE KA 8 22,326 34,626
Depreciation of plant and = MR ST E
equipment 9 2,857 3,339
Depreciation of right-of-use FRAEEENE
assets 9 1,754 1,755
Amortisation of intangible mR A EME
assets 9 390 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meRERER

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2023 2022
—B-=F —F-_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETF T
Operating cash flow before EEESEPA I RER S
working capital changes mE 140,674 37,314
Decrease/(increase) in ERPMERBEREZ
properties under development 23 THEER L (3EH0)
and completed properties
held for sale 593,407 (168,090)
Decrease in trade receivables JE W BR Fom > 1,763 2,134
Decrease in prepayments, TERFIA -~ me REMER
deposits and other AR FORL
receivables 59,659 65,250
Decrease in contract costs X %N - 700
(Decrease)/increase in trade FERBEZRCRLA) /1N
payables (140,929) 62,530
Increase in accruals and other Bzt & B M H M EMERR
payables N 2,609 12,038
Decrease in contract liabilities AHBERD (395,906) (48,851)
Cash generated from/(used in) & EERE,/ (FAA)ZRE
operations 261,277 (36,975)
Land appreciation tax paid B g ER (16,387) (4,089
Income tax paid =ANIZIECE = (25,750)
Net cash generated from/ BEEKFRE(FFR)ZRE
(used in) operating activities (FZE 244,890 (66,764)
Cash flows from investing REXKEFB2ERERE
activities
Proceed from a financial asset  RERAFEFAEBRZ
at FVTPL TREENSHIA - 11,214
Purchase of intangible assets BEETAE (3,900) -
Purchase of plant and equipment & B & & MR E (4,145) (1,852)
Addition to investment property REMERE (2,149) (485)
Release of pledged deposits FERRE IR S - 3,386
Interest received B UFE 3,616 6,079
Dividend received from an B —EEE R FARE
associate = 60,000
Proceed from capital reduction  —RgEg#A N 7] BISRAS A4S 2
of an associate B2 R1A 140,867 -
Net cash generated from REXLKFBREEE
investing activities 134,289 78,342
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ EE@/)H:E%E

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2023 2022
—EC=F —_F-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR¥TFT ARBTFT
Cash flows from financing BMEXRCEHERE
activities
Proceeds from other secured BB ERE RS RIE
loans - 133,800
Repayment of bank loans BEIEITER (18,000) (135,976)
Repayment of other secured EEHEMBERER
loans (297,200) (122,100)
Net movement of current — B & A AT R FUA
account with an associate aﬂﬁ - 249
Net movement of amount due to &N —Z#1TEFHIAE
an executive director FE 2,455 3,143
Finance costs BRE A (22,326) (34,626)
Repayment of principal of lease (EEBHE&EAS
liabilities (1,729) (1,511)
Net cash used in financing BMEXKEFTACREEHE
activities (336,800) (157,021)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash & RIESZEYL N,
and cash equivalents CRl) 558 42,379 (145,443)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BzRekResE
1 January B 76,860 222,250
Effect of foreign exchange rate  [EXR ) /2
changes 21 53
Cash and cash equivalents at R+t A=+—HzHRE& K
31 December HeEEY 119,260 76,860
Analysis of cash and cash ReERBSEBYIW
equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KB 23 119,260 76,860
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEREBDE

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

Attributable to owners of the Company

LTINS
Fairvalue
trough
other
Currency Capital comprehensive Non-
Share Share translation ~ Capital Contributed  redemption income  Statutory Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  surplus  reserve reseve  reserve loss  Sub-total interests Total equity
BATE
ghite EAEE  HALH

kx  RAEE  BE  EAEE  MARR  BE GEWEE  IERR  RMEE b RERRE  RufE
RMBOO  RMBOO  AMBOOO  RMBOW  RMBUX  RMBOX  RMBO®  RMBUX  RMBOO  RMBOM)  RMBUX  RMBO0O

ARETr ABBTT ARRTT ARRTR ARBFT ARETL ARBTR ARREET ARMTT ARRFT ARETT ARRFR

Asat 1 January 2023

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss
for the year:

Exchange difference on
{ranslation of financial
statement of foreign
Operations

Total comprefensive loss
for the year

As at 31 December 2023

ATEZZE-A-B0 3628 2962005 (24001) 81 301,799 8 (1,000) 26,500 (1,438,808) 1,669,936 200 1,670,136

FRER - - - - - - - - (38716 (33,776) - (33779)

FRARZEER:

= - : : : : :

(6%9) - )

FREABRLE
- -9 - - - - - ) (44 - (4dmy)

iut 3
tZf=1-A 37,628 2982905 (240,780 81 301,799 82 (10000 26500 (1,472584) 1,635,461 200 1,635,661
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

*")(,‘%ﬂ@]%

nVT\

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (&

2-F

ZFf A= —HIFFE)

Atroutable to owners of the Company

RATEENEL
Favale
frough
oher
Currency Captal  comprenensiee Non-
Share Share trangiaion Captal ~ Contrbuted  redemption e Statutory  Accumulated controling
cap - premium T6ENe T6ENe surplus T6SEIVe SR T6SEIVe loss  Subfo inferests  Total eouity
BATE
ghih ETEE  p)Af
BE BbOEE B AMER  SAER R CEEARE  RERE  EHBE J5 HRER  EREE
RUBOOO  AMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  AMBOOO  RMBOO0  RVBOOO  AMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  AMBUOO
NFETT ARETT ABEFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ABETT ARETT ARETR
Asat 1 January 2022 RIFZZE-A-B oo 2082905 (407%8) 81 301,799 8 (1,000 23404 (1,396,564 1,708,387 200 1,708,587
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - B AT I AT - [
Other comprenenshe noome. B A2 ENA -
for the year:
Bchange diferenceon 28BN FHEBR
tansatonoffancl~ RZEREE
statement of foreign
operations - - 697 - - - - - - 697 - 697
Totdcompenensiveloss ~ ER2EEEAE
for the year - - 697 - - - - - 3948 (38451) - 384
Transferto ERSTARATHE
non-ltrbutable L5
resenve fund - - - - - - - 3,006 (3,096) - - -
As at 31 December 2022 W-3-2F
t2f=1-H 37628 2982906 (240,031) 8t 301,799 8 (1,000) 26500 (1,438,808 1,669,936 200 1670136
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Talent Property Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda and domiciled
in Hong Kong. The addresses of its registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section to the annual report.
The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Talent
Trend Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI, is
the ultimate holding company of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
including (i) property development, (ii) property investment
and (iii) property management.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), while the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). As the major business
of the Group is located in the Mainland China, the
directors consider that it will be more appropriate to adopt
RMB as the Group’s and the Company’s presentation
currency.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 were approved for issue by the board
of directors on 27 March 2024.

1.

—RE R

HAWEEBARAB(AAR])BRE
REFMKIZZERRA - UBBRER
FifEsh - ARBZAMERERFELHE
WEEFRP AR ER —EIKE - KAF]
ZRINHNERBAERSMEMRA A ([HAZ
Ffr1)_ETT ° Talent Trend Holdings Limited
ARRNBINEEIERAR - REBRE L
S -

KRB BIREER AR - TEMBARZ
FTEEBVEO)MERE - (MWELRER
(i EEERE -

ARpmzpeE¥RET(BIT]) iR
EBUBHBERAARB(TAREDZ - &
RAKEHNEEXRBURTEAN - RE
ERRRAARBERAEERA AR
2IERERAE -

BE-ZE-_=F+-A=+—RILEEZ
SEEMBRREN-_ZE-_ME=A_++
AEZ=SA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

A Ny =]

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decision made by
primary users. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

The material accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in Note 3.

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and certain properties that are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 16 and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value
in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

2.

BEASTTHEME®)

mBEE(E)
BTREREBREAFEIENETS
BIARETHE  AGAHBBREE
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B A — SRR A IER A E R KR 2
KB 2 AT EEEH -

RFETETS2EE 2 HETEBETT
MEFR ST HE—REEMMKIRNER
FEB-HAEMXNNER  BWXE
REARERATERINGER  HEFKH
HipHEXRMIELA G - EHEEXKA
BERRTEELGHE  AKEZETH
L2RELEGFEARZEERRFEETE
ERFSEEENZEFRH NEFRAY
BRRPFAERHREN A FEGRIL
EETUETE  HFBMBHRSELE2
SRAR D R ETE B N R E B M E AR D &
EMOINRS - REFEM B RS LR
F1MARNEER 5 AR FERLUE
WA FENFTEPINEESHERE2
FEETNRERFERT LG ELE
365 & ERMEF M ERER)ERD -

FeMEENAFEFEA AT HE2EE
BRBRARBEERZEEEDREREL
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REAFERXINEHTARKRENEIA
EREZBRAEATEREREEIER
ZBABEZAERLME  HERDE
T AR BUE ) 2 HE R B R (B R T5 48
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

77 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out as below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

BIBHRRE

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

A Ny =]

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

The performance obligations of the Group for contracts
with customers are summarized as follows:

(i) Development and sales of properties (revenue
recognised at a point in time)

For contracts entered into with customers on sales
of properties, based on opinion from the Group’s
internal legal counsel, taking into consideration
of the relevant contract terms and customary
practice within the industry in the PRC, the legal
environment and relevant legal precedent, the
management of the Group concluded that the
Group does not have an enforceable right to
payment for the work performed to date at all times
during the contract prior to transfer of the relevant
properties to customers. Revenue from sales
of residential properties in the PRC is therefore
recognized at a point in time when the completed
property is transferred to customers, being at
the point that the customer obtains the control of
the completed property and the Group has fully
received the consideration of the properties sold.

The Group normally receives 1%-36% (2022:
2%-59%) of the contract value as deposits from
customers when they sign the sale and purchase
agreements. Such advance payment result in
contract liabilities being recognised throughout the
property construction period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i) Development and sales of properties (revenue
recognised at a point in time) (continued)

The Group applies the practical expedient for
advance payment received from customers, given
that if the corresponding performance obligation is
expected to satisfy within 12 months after receiving
the advance payment, (i.e. when the control of the
completed property is transferred to the customer
within 12 months), the financing component
is considered insignificant and the amounts of
consideration, contract liability and revenue are not
adjusted for the effects of any time value of money.

The Group considers the advance payment from
customers contain significant financing component
and accordingly the amount of consideration is
adjusted for the effects of the time value of money
taking into consideration the credit characteristics
of the Group. As this accrual increases the
amount of the contract liability during the period of
construction, it increases the amount of revenue
recognised when control of the completed property
is transferred to the customer.

(ii) Property management (revenue recognised
over time)

For contracts entered into with customers on
property management services, it is considered as
monthly services provided to tenants and owners
of properties and the performance obligations are
fulfiled on a straight-line basis over the contracts
terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A contract liability, such as advance payment received
from customers represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not
been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the assets
relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.

Revenue from other source

Rental income of property leasing under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

77 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group assesses whether
a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will
not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed. As a practical
expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual
leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of land and building that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model, right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property, properties under
development or completed properties held for sale as
a separate line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL 2. EXREHERRBE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued) HE®E)

The Group as a lessee (continued) KEFELRBA(E)
Lease liabilities (continued) HEERE(E)

The lease payments include: HEFERE

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.
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After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
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The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in . THEBEMENITFEEERER
MR EEAERL  RZBRT - 8
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the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

° the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review/
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit or loss.
When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognized initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests in associates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of currency
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages, salaries, annual leaves and sick leaves)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Defined contribution plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC, the Group participates in a defined contribution
basic pension insurance in the social insurance system
established and managed by government organisations.
The Group makes contributions to basic pension
insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks
and rates stipulated by the government. Basic pension
insurance contributions are recognised as part of the
cost of assets or charged to profit or loss as the related
services are rendered by the employees.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under
the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all employees
in Hong Kong, which is a defined contribution retirement
scheme. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based
on minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5% of
eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income. The assets
of this pension scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered funds.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale,
except for freehold land, which is always presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised at initial recognition and over the lease terms
due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the
relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain tax
treatment used, or proposed to be used by individual
group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently
with the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not
probable that the relevant taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty
is reflected by using either the most likely amount or the
expected value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual value over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10-33.33%
Motor vehicles 20%

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Golf club membership

Golf club membership is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of membership over the estimated
useful live, which is 8 years.
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2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties also
include leased properties which are being recognised as
right-of-use assets and subleased by the Group under
operating leases. Investment properties are initially
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its plant and equipment and right of
use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
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2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets (continued)

For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units.

In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

Properties under development which are intended to be
sold upon completion of development and properties for
sale are classified as current assets. Properties under
development/properties for sale are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on
a specific identification basis including allocation of the
related development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the
properties less estimated cost to completion and costs
necessary to make the sales. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable to
the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.

The Group transfers a property from completed properties
held for sale to investment property when there is a
change in use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and
for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary
course of business, which is evidenced by the inception
of an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value of the property at the date of
transfer and its previous carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to
be met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability
and it is not recognized in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no
reliable estimate can be made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances that are
subject to regulatory restrictions that result in such
balances no longer meeting the definition of cash;
and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

77 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS
3 Business Combination applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

BEASTTHEME®)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (continued)

(if)

(i)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in OCI and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve and
are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
and will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the other revenue in profit
or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, pledged deposit and cash and cash
equivalent) which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

BEASTTHEME®)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

BEASTTHEME®)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or

more events that have a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of that financial asset

have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is

credit-impaired includes observable data about the

following events:

(@)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

(iv)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral held by
the Group).

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

BEASTTHEME®)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped by aging basis.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

77 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
designate the investment as at FVTOCI at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9 or on initial recognition of
the investment, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual
obligation for the Group to deliver cash or other financial
assets or the Group has the sole discretion to defer
payment of distribution and redemption of principal
amount indefinitely are classified as equity instruments.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, accruals and
other payables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest
and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL 2. BEAREHBERBE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties AL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: HFEUTERAOALTHABEAEEEH
i
(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that (a) ZATHRERKGKRESIR - M
person’s family and that person AL
() has control or joint control over the Group; 0] ¥R B A 5 sk SR T
4
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or (ii) HAEEELESEATE 3
(i)  is a member of the key management (i) RAEBENAEERZHAF
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the FEEEEKE
Group;
or B4
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following b) #“ALAER BFEUATERN—
conditions applies: EIEMR
0] the entity and the Group are members of the 0] ZEBERASEERE—5F
same group (which means that each parent, ZREBAR(ANEEAF -
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to oY== ES NSRS
the others); B Ea)
(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture (ii) ZERAHMES(IHEHM
of the other entity (or an associate or joint ERMESEENE QR 25
venture of a member of a group of which the ERRASEERE) 2BME
other entity is a member); NAElE BB
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of iy <HEBEAIEERR—F=
the same third party; FRZEERE
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy, HEBRF-FEBZEE
and the other entity is an associate of the TrEREMEBAF=FE
third entity; BoBERNA
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(o)

(continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence,

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

statements and Making

materiality judgements:

Disclosure of accounting

policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting policies,
changes in accounting
estimates and errors:
Definition of accounting
estimates

Income taxes: Deferred
tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a

Amendments to HKAS 12

single transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income taxes: International
tax reform — Pillar Two
model rules

HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendment
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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A Ny =]

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to
HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

or Non-Current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?
Amendments to HKFRS  Sales or Contribution of Assets
10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements?
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 2, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(i)

(ii)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating in
the PRC and are subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

PRC land appreciation taxes

Some subsidiaries of the Group are subject to
land appreciation taxes in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of these taxes varies
among different tax jurisdictions in various cities of
the PRC, and those subsidiaries have not finalised
all of their land appreciation taxes calculation and
payments with any local tax authorities in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation
taxes. The Group recognised these land
appreciation taxes based on management’s best
estimates according to the interpretation of the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax and tax
provisions in the periods in which such taxes have
been finalised with local tax authorities.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

BARRE at Ml & B K fhE AR

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties in the PRC are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time. As a result,
the Group is subject to income taxes on the rental
income of its investment properties in the PRC
and deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the
investment properties are recognised.

Estimates for net realisable value of properties
under development and completed properties
held for sale

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying
amounts of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale for the
Group are approximately RMB438,000,000
(2022: approximately RMB523,054,000) and
approximately RMB1,745,582,000 (2022:
approximately RMB2,352,041,000), respectively
and the completed properties held for sale by
the associate is approximately RMB175,091,000
(2022: RMB203,943,000). During the year ended
31 December 2023, an amount of RMB24,271,000
(2022: Reversal of impairment of RMB45,456,000)
impairment loss was made for properties under
development and RMB73,835,000 (2022:
Nil) impairment loss was made for completed
properties held for sale. The Group assesses the
carrying amounts of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale according to
their net realisable value based on the realisability of
these properties. Net realisable value for properties
under development is determined by reference to
management’s estimates of the selling price based
on prevailing market conditions, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated
costs to completion (including land costs). Net
realisable value for completed properties held for
sale is determined by reference to management’s
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing
market conditions, less applicable variable selling
expenses.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(v)

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for the properties with similar
lease and other contracts. In the absence of such
information, the Group determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.
In making its judgement, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources including:

(i) current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature, condition or
location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those
differences; and

(if) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at
those prices; and

(iii) discounted cash flow projections based
on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
derived from the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (where possible)
from external evidence such as current
market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using
capitalisation rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flows.

The Group assesses the fair value of its investment
properties based on valuations determined by
independent and professional qualified valuer.

The fair value losses from investment properties are
disclosed in Note 14.
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e IR
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BARRE at Ml & B K fhE AR

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(vi)

Recognition and allocation of construction
cost on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded
as properties under development during the
construction stage and will be transferred
to completed properties held for sale upon
completion. Apportionment of these costs will be
recognised in the profit or loss upon the recognition
of the sale of the properties. Before the final
settlement of the development costs and other
costs relating to the sale of properties, these costs
are accrued by the Group based on management’s
best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide
the development projects into phases. Specific
costs directly related to the development of a
phase are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to phases are allocated to
individual phases based on the estimated saleable
area of the entire project.

When the final settlement of costs and the related
cost allocation is different from the initial estimates,
any increase or decrease in the development costs
and other costs would affect the profit or loss in
future years.
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DEBINERHEMEF N IES
FER o MEEARER —MFAEKA R
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& T ARG »
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ZHEMARBER DL ZUA » %
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i S 1& — B RSB AR AR 2 5R0R R A8 RE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g A

A Ny =]

LR RS E Ik

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(vii)

Revenue recognition from sales of properties
with no alternative use at a point in time

Under HKFRS 15, control of the asset is transferred
over time when the Group’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date at all times
during the contract period. Significant judgment is
required in determining whether in the customary
practice such right to payment is enforceable in
the Group’s ordinary course of business in selling
properties in the PRC. The Group has based on the
terms of the contract and considered the relevant
local laws and the customary practice that apply
to those relevant contracts and an opinion from
the Group’s internal legal counsel. Based on the
assessment by the Group’s management, the
terms of the relevant sales contracts do not create
an enforceable right to payment for the Group at all
times during the contract period. Accordingly, the
sales of properties is considered to be performance
obligation satisfied at a point in time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

o EE R

REBRI=f(=ZT=-—%F : ={F)%%
B WAELRERD KR ZERE MR
ENENUGREBENRAAERETE R
RARE o

SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

The Group is organised into three (2022: three) business
units, based on which information is prepared and
reported to the Group’s chief decision makers, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance.

Information of the Group’s operating and reportable REB 2 EERARED I ELRT R
segments are shown as follows: N

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE_ZE-_=f+-A=+—HLEFE

Property Property Property
development investment management Total
MERR MERE MEER @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AR¥FT AREFT
Reportable segment revenue BE e
Revenue W 743,852 12,191 10,689 766,732
Timing of revenue recognition BEBUBRELERFE155
for those within the scope of EE AW AN
HKFRS 15

A point in time — (AR 743,852 = = 743,852
Over time W A ] - - 10,689 10,689
Revenue from other source HityoR K22
Rental income i ON - 12,191 - 12,191
Total @st 743,852 12,191 10,689 766,732
Reportable segment profit/(loss) TR & 2 HisF,/ (&E) 62,803 (46,492) 72 16,383
Share of result of an associate AME—HEEREEE 42,415
Finance costs BEAKA (22,326)
Income tax expenses FEHEX (40,557)
Unallocated expenses AOERX (33,719)
Unallocated income AOBEKA 4,028
Loss for the year EEER (33,776)
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 2,315,520 504,782 1,205 2,821,507
Corporate assets NAEE 327,203
Group assets SEEE 3,148,710
Reportable segment liabilities AHENHEE 779,110 132,218 1,962 913,290
Corporate liabilities UNSIE=Lr 599,759
Group liabilities fEEE 1,513,049
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e MR

77 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (&

5.

E_F

== A=A —AUFE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. ZEERE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 EEFTA=T—HIFE
Property Property Property
development investment  management Total
WEER NERE NEER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTL ANRETFT ARETFT ARETT
Reportable segment revenue TRED Pz
Revenue Y 253,557 11,125 11,431 276,113
Timing of revenue recognition BB EHREERE15%
for those within the scope of EE R A B
HKFRS 15
A point in time —{ErsE, 253,557 - - 253,557
Over time b= - - 11,431 11,431
Revenue from other source =R S
Rental income HelA - 11,125 - 11,125
Total o 253,557 11,125 11,431 276,113
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 7§ % 55/ (FiE) 104,196 (42,368) 1,049 62,877
Share of result of an associate AL NTEE (4,427)
Finance costs BB (34,626)
Income tax expenses FrEREY (37,784)
Unallocated expenses AOBREY (37,934)
Unallocated income KOEWA 12,746
Loss for the year FEER (39,148)
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 3,057,125 561,470 1,672 3,620,167
Corporate assets NABE 410,446
Group assets KEEE 4,030,613
Reportable segment liabilities AREN AR 1,620,367 147,298 1,539 1,769,204
Corporate liabilities NABE 591,273
Group liabilities £BEE 2,360,477
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VAN
2 Ny =]

LIPS e

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oHEB )
The measure used for reporting segment profits or losses MEMD I EFNBEAMA T ERKRA
is adjusted profits/(losses) before interest and taxes. To BRMBEAZEHERZRN (BE) - BE
arrive at adjusted profits/(losses), the Group’s profits/ BEAERRN(BR)  AEBEHM
(losses) are further adjusted for items not specifically (BE)DAECHEBRERNDE2EE
attributed to individual segments, such as share of results (BlEn D EEE A RIEE - BEKAK - FT
of an associate, finance costs, income tax expenses, BRAZUNEME D E WA R ATTTH
and other allocated income and corporate administration AN ) VE T — %R o
costs.
Segment assets consist primarily of investment properties, NHEETEBRLEDE  BTHRER
certain plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, certain R FRBEEE  ETHEMNNRIE &
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, properties REMBUWERR BRAME  FHIELHE
under development, completed properties held for sales, ZBERTITYE  BUREFARETRESR
trade receivables and certain cash and cash equivalent. ReEEY -
Segment liabilities consists primarily of trade payables, PHEETEBREEMNER  BTETE
certain accruals and other payables, contract liabilities, AREMERNKIE  aHAGE HEAR
lease liabilities and borrowings. RAE o
Other segment information for the year ended 31 BE_ZT-=F+A=1T—HLFEZ
December 2023 is as follows: HEmoHERAT :
Property Property Property
development investment management  Unallocated Total
MERR MERE MEER ROE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT  ARETFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFR
Other segment HEth B
information:
Addition to non-current  FRIFEREHHBEE
segment assets NE
during the year 2,593 2,149 - 5,452 10,194
Reversal of expected BB BAEE
credit losses for trade R
receivables - 121 - - 121
Depreciation and & R
amortisation (3,935) - - (1,066) (5,001)
Fair value changeson ~ BEMENTFEEE
investment properties - (54,749) - - (54,749)
Impairment loss of BRPMEREE
properties under HEZBRTIME
development and REEE
completed properties
held for sale (98,106) - - - (98,106)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. ZEERE)
Other segment information for the year ended 31 HEZZT-_F+-A=1t—HILFEZ
December 2022 is as follows: Hih HF &R
Property Property Property
development investment  management Unallocated Total
NEER NWERE NEER AOE @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABETT  AREFT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFIL

Other segment HippEEs!
information:
Addition to non-current  FRIERB HBEE
segment assets NE
during the year 7,756 485 - 31 8,272

Reversal of expected RUER BBEE
credit losses for trade  [BIERE

receivables - 62 - - 62
Depreciation nE (4,215) - - (879) (5,094)
Fair value changeson ~ HBEMERTFEE

investment properties - (49,445) - - (49,445)
Reversal of impairment ~ ZEHWEFIELSR

loss of properties #m

under development 45,456 - - - 45,456
None of (2022: four) customers from property development HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE "
segment individually contributed over 10% of the Group’s BE(CZ-_—F O2)REBVEER
total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2023. DESE P AR E AN B B = ) B B IR

10% ©
2023 2022
—EZ=HF —E -

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT

Customer A EFA - 34,286
Customer B EFB - 34,286
Customer C =PC - 33,333
Customer D %FD - 31,429
All the Group’s revenues from external customers is REBFRGINARE 222 WRG K G T
derived from the Mainland China. A o
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e IR R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Non-current assets (excluding financial instruments and
deferred tax asset) of the Group are divided into the
following geographical areas:

oEE R (@)
AEEFADEE(FTRESRIAR
BEERIBEEE)D AU THE

2023 2022
—g== —F-=

—_—=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARKETT

Hong Kong (domicile) (note)
Mainland China H B A ih,

note: The place of domicile is determined based on the location
of central management.

The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or
the location of properties sold and/or leased out. The
geographical locations of the non-current assets and
interests of associate are based on the physical location
of the assets and location of operation of the associate
respectively.

EB (R (ML)

1,087 -
752,071 910,162
753,158 910,162

Wit - RBAEMRETREEEMALE

E o

BEFAEM T ARMIRBHEE &S
HY XM DEE - FFRBEE K
EBREBEAAEMTIDRIAEEZ BRI
BN E N AR E R EL I AR -
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e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

6. REVENUE 6. U=
The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note 1 to REB s FEZXEBEBRRZIHEEVBR
these consolidated financial statements. Turnover of the RMEE o REZRSFEB 2 WRITENAE
Group is the revenue from those activities. Set out below BEEEE - RERFL,EHREESHER
is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with Frig e sRIEM T BRE ST -
customers with the amounts disclosed in the segment
information:
2023 2022
—E-= —F-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
Sales of properties HEW % 743,852 253,557
Properties management fees MEEEE 10,689 11,431

Revenue from contracts with customers XEEFEHARE(BESE

(within the scope of HKFRS 15) B iR & RSB 155
HER) 754,541 264,988
Gross rental income from investment REYE B WABE
properties (outside the scope of HKFRS 15) (TBREBBWEER
FE1LREEN) 12,191 11,125
Total st 766,732 276,113
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e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

REVENUE (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The transaction price in respect of outstanding contracts
with customers for the sales of properties as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 and the
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:

6.

W st ()

BRXEEIREFFENTHNEGE
WEIE

R-EBEZ=FRKR_TB_—_F+-A=+—
H #EELMBHETFPIIZHRTK
MEBEEHNTE  PEERBEHNET
(RBITHED REIT) R HERERIK
A TE R A0 T TR ¢

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—=E-= —ZE-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT
Within one year —F R 409,136 768,814

For the sales of properties, the performance obligation is
satisfied upon the transfer of the control of the properties
and the Group has fully received the consideration of the
properties sold. The expected timing of title transfer is
stated in the sales and purchases agreements.

Leases

SIFEMEMS - BORERYMEIZEHI#E
BELAREDZBWRE EYERORER
EETT -  FREENEHRRNEE WS
T ©

HE

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—HILEE

2023 2022
—E=-= —ZE-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFIT
Rental income under operating leases: KEMEERTHESBA ¢
Lease payments that are fixed EEEHERIE 12,191 11,125
Total revenue arising from leases HEEE 2B NS 12,191 11,125

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2023 143



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

7. OTHER REVENUE 7. Hiblkzs
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTT AREFIT
Other revenue H bz
Interest income on financial assets carried at KK AARZ S MEEZ
amortised costs B U A 3,616 6,079
Interest income on loan to an associate BT —EBEARERZHE
WA 104 17
Management fee income from an associate KE—FEBERTZERE
WA 33 6
Others HAith 275 3,350
4,028 9,452
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. ®EMAK
2023 2022
—E-= =T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FrT AREFT
Interest on secured bank loans BRERIBTERZAE 6,982 12,859
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEZAE 311 430
Interest on other secured loans HEMBRERREZRZFA 15,033 32,607
Interest on contract liabilities BHEEZFE - 60,452
Less: amount capitalised to properties B BN RERBPMEZ
under development T - (71,722)
22,326 34,626
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e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

9. PBRBIATEF,(F8)

9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

2023 2022
—E== —EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at BRATEHAIRF, (B8 B
after charging/(crediting): meg(FEA) -
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEE 390 -
Cost of properties sold B EWERKAK 557,132 158,400
Cost of service for property management W) 3 B IR AR A B AR 10,243 9,931
Reversal of expected credit losses for trade R 2 TEEEEEE
receivables A (121) (62)
Tax and other levies BIA K H A B 8,146 6,510
Depreciation of plant and equipment (note (a)) ®&E &2 &I & (H1it(a) 2,857 3,339
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 1,754 1,755
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN &
— Audit services —EBF R 772 732
- Non-audit services — FEEAHRTS 325 172
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment loss) ~ ZE&ERFYH 2 REEE
of properties under development CREE R ) 24,271 (45,456)
Impairment loss of completed properties held ~ FEHE 2 B%R T 2 BE
for sale g 73,835 .
Rental income from investment properties less REMFEE W AR EEZF X
direct outgoings (note (b)) (B1iz () (9,694) (8,477)
notes: Bt -
(a) Depreciation expenses (a) FERX
Depreciation expenses of approximately RMB2,857,000 WERIZHARK2857,000L(=F
(2022: approximately RMB3,339,000) have been included — = $) AR¥3,339,0007T) E A
in administrative expenses. THRER -

(b) Rental income from investment properties
Direct outgoings incurred for rental income from investment
properties amounted to approximately RMB2,497,000

(2022: RMB2,648,000).

(b) REMEHRS A

#2,648,0007T) °

KEMERSWAMEEEERYOA
ARME2497,0000(ZFZ2F : AR
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e BRI

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

10.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

10. EERARAX(BEESHMH)

EMOLUMENTS)
2023 2022
—EZ=H —Eo
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Wages and salaries TENFS 15,680 21,958
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIKS A — FRE R ETE 839 1,586
16,519 23,544

The PRC Operating Entities participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal and provincial
government authorities, whereby the PRC Operating
Entities are required to make contribution at the rates
required by different local government authorities. The
local government authorities are responsible for the
pension obligations payable to the retired employees
covered under the Schemes. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Schemes.

Under the PRC Schemes to which the Group’s
subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to make
contribution, forfeited contributions cannot be used by the
employers to reduce the existing level of contributions. For
the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was
no forfeited contribution available to reduce existing level
of contributions payable in the future years.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wrE B F AR MY T

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 10. EERFFEX(BEESHMH)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (&)
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)
Contributions made by the Group to the MPF Scheme REERABRESFTEEL O HER TS
vest immediately. For the year ended 31 December 2023 B -HE_T =G RkZFT__F+=H
and 2022, there was no forfeited contribution available to Zt+—BItFE - WERWERRA R
reduce existing level of contributions payable in the future RRFEEENBAKE ZHEK -
years.
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. EEMERESREEASHMH
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
11.1 Directors’ emoluments 111 ES# S
Executive directors and independent non-executive HITEERBUIENITES -
directors:
2023 —E-=fF
Salaries, Contribution
allowances & to defined
Directors’ benefitsin  Discretionary contribution
fees kind bonus plan Total
#4828 EBHY
EzHe REWFE RiERL HE 5 o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARRFR ABR TR ARRTR ARRFR ARRFR

Executive directors ~ H{TEZ

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin R BEE - 3,124 - 16 3,140
Mr. Luo Zhangguan EEmik - 564 - 48 612
Independent BUFHTES

non-executive

directors
Mr. Lo Wai Hung EREEE 239 - - - 239
Mr. Fok Chi Tat, Michael E&HE%4 206 - - - 206
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong FRREE 206 - - - 206

651 3,688 - 64 4,403
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 1. ESMEREREEASTHMH
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S (#&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
11.1 Directors’ emoluments (continued) 111 EEME(H)
2022 —=E-—
Salaries, Contribution
allowances & to defined
Directors’ benefits in Discretionary contribution
fees kind bonus plan Total
= EBHHT
EELUE REDNE BT HENES @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AEETT ANEETFT ANEETT
Executive directors ~ H{TEE
Mr. Zhang Gao Bin ReELE - 2,979 - 16 2,995
Mr. Luo Zhangguan EEmAE - 558 - 47 605
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive
directors
Mr. Lo Wai Hung ERIELE 228 - - - 228
Mr. Fok Chi Tat, Michael EHExL4E 197 - - - 197
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong FRREE 197 - - - 197
622 3,537 - 63 4,222

There were no arrangements under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2022: Nil).

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above

were paid for their services in connection with the

management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group. The emoluments of the Independent Non-

executive Directors shown above were paid for

their services as Directors of the Company.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. ESMEREREEASEHMH
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S (%)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
11.2 Five highest paid individuals 11.2 EEESHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the AEEFARLAERaTATEER
highest in the Group for the year included two Z(ZEZZF - =ZR)EF ' ®
(2022: three) directors whose emoluments are E2MeERME11A2®R DM
reflected in the analysis presented in Note 11.1. ARM - FARNBTIT=2(ZF
The emoluments payable to the remaining three TF - WMBE)ALTZMEWT ¢
(2022: two) individuals during the year are as
follows:
2023 2022
—EC-=F —F-_=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AREFIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #4& « JEREREYHZ 2,056 1,688
Retirement scheme contributions RIS R 69 31
2,125 1,719
The emoluments fell within the following bands: ZEMEBR THIAR
Number of individuals
EEAH
2023 2022
—EC=HE T2 F
Emolument bands B <& 48 B
RMB1,000,001-RMB1,500,000 AR#1,000,0010&
AR #1,500,0007T 1 1
RMBO0-RMB500,000 AR®OTE
AR ¥500,0007T 2 1
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e BRI

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (#Z —%—

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

ZFEF A= AILFE)

12. FISHMAX

2023 2022
—EB=F —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT ARETFIT
Current tax BRER%E 18
The PRC — Enterprise Income Tax R — EFTER
— Tax for the year —RFEHIE 19,083 10,180
The PRC — Land Appreciation tax PR — i (EF
— Current year —AEE 37,448 38,481
Deferred tax (Note 29) EEBE(H7129)
— Credit for the year —RFEEE (15,974) (10,877)
Total income tax expense FrisBip 4% 40,557 37,784
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

12. ISHBAX @)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting IR MR EAM KT E e M < ¥
profit at applicable tax rates: R
2023 2022
—E-= —ET——
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREBLATDRF,(EE) 6,781 (1,364)
Income tax at the PRC income tax rate of 25% 1ZFRBIFTEBRER25%E 2
Frigfi 1,695 (341)
Tax effect of different taxation rates in other H i T/HE@TH??R <z
tax jurisdictions 7 i3 478 127
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue /,\f%ﬁﬁiﬂﬂl s BB (156) (374)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT 2 s & 2,230 4,828
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences KRR AR E R ZR >
not recognised HIEZE 24,527 =
Tax effect of reversal of unrecognised BERERINBERER Y
deductible temporary differences Mg B (6,750) (11,364)
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised tax FAFERBEFERERBIE
losses utilised this year EEZHETE (2,750) (660)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RIERAREARIBEIE
recognised D% 2,221 9,568
Tax effect of previously recognised allowable  SCRTHER AT I E5EHE 2
loss expired Bige - 936
Tax effect of share of result of an associate G —EBEAREE 2
i £ (10,604) 1,107
Tax effect of reversal of previously recognised (8] 5 5 #E 52 7] FNF7 &5 18 2
allowable loss k32 = 4,300
Tax effect of reversal of previously recognised  # [ %ﬁﬁﬁﬁw—ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ—rﬁi
deductible temporary difference 2R & - 696
PRC land appreciation tax A 4 IR (E 37,448 38,481
Effect of PRC land appreciation tax H lit@ﬂﬁ%&Z%; (9,362) (9,620)
Effect of withholding tax AR 28 1,580 =
Income tax expense FriS R 2 40,557 37,784
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

77 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018
and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in Mainland China has been calculated at the
rate of 25% (2022: 25%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rate
ranging from 30% to 60% (2022: 30% to 60%) on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including lease
charges of land use rights and all properties development
expenditures.

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#

12.

EBRBAXZ @
—E-N\EZA-+—0B BBIEE
BB(-E—tERBUET) (BLH) &
FIERYNTEFER]) - 3| AFIEH MK
o EHIERR-E—N\E=A-+/\B
BICERLROR B TIE - FISH MR8
TORAMAN G EEERERE
BB TR R 5 128.25% KO B R - 1B
B 7 TR RS 2 16.5% M B R4
B FEANEHMASIEENERTE
Yo 4t S 16,5 9% KO B — Bk o

RAREERBAITHERMBR IS E
BEBSAVBEBREPUTEKX - BEFE
8 Th AR 38 P M8 F [ 2 il 51 FE AR Bt vt M) 39 4%
16.5% K TAEFTHE °

AEBEL T E A EBEL Z IS T BHHE
DIRBAFE G ERBEN - BEBE
B BEREOIERTRB%(ZFT ==

F o 25%)FHEFH -

AR IR E R AR S L (B E 2 R (A
HEMEMSHRERATIRASL (B1EL
WERAEREERAURMMEMERRY
EIRRERRI0%EC0% (T -
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13.

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

LOSS PER SHARE 13. BREE
Basic loss per share BREXRER
The calculation of loss per share is based on the FREBDIRERDREE ARLEIRLY
loss attributable to the owners of the Company of AR#33,776,000c(— = —F : AR
approximately RMB33,776,000 (2022: RMB39,148,000) #£39,148,0007T) R FAE BT EBR 2
and on the weighted average of 514,656,827 (2022: DREF 19 E514,656,827M (— T = —4& :
514,656,827 (restated)) ordinary shares in issue during the 514,656,827 % (4 &%) )5t & °
year.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for REAEEREARBENS  #E222==
the year ended 31 December 2023 for the purposes of FH+ZA=+—BIEFEMNT AR INETF
calculating basic loss per share have been adjusted for the HAHEFRR_BE_=FNAT=HETH
share consolidation which took place on 13 September BOEHELAZ Al - #2=2F=—=
2023. Accordingly, the basic loss per share for the year FH+- A=+ HBLEFENEREXREER
ended 31 December 2022 are restated. TLAES ©
Diluted loss per share BRE#EEER
There was no difference between basic and diluted loss BHE_Z-_=GFR=-ZF=-_=_F+=A
per share as the Company did not have any dilutive = +—HLEFE  ARERRREEEE
potential shares outstanding during the year ended 31 EEITHEINNETE R - SRERNREE
December 2023 and 2022. BRITEEZER -
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYE
2023 2022
—E-= —E——
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT
At 1 January n—A—H 552,700 585,960
Additions NE 2,149 485
Decrease in fair value DNEER D (54,749) (49,445)
Transfer from completed properties ERERELEZERIME
held for sale - 15,700
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 500,100 552,700

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2023

153



154

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The analysis of the net carrying amount of investment
properties according to lease periods as at 31 December
were as follows:

BEME®)
BEMEN+ - A=+ RRESNED
FEHWMT -

2023 2022
—E-= —=E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBEINGS -
Lease of between 10 to 50 years HHEFNF10E50F 500,100 552,700

The fair value of the investment properties of the Group
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were assessed by B.l.
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified valuer. B.I.
Appraisals Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors. For financial reporting purpose, discussions
and review of valuation processes and results are held
amongst the Group’s senior management and officers
of relevant operation departments and the independent
professional valuer. The results are being directly reported
back to the executive directors of the Company.

The valuation for investment properties was arrived at
by considering the capitalised income derived from the
existing tenancies and the reversionary potential of the
properties or, where appropriate by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in
similar locations and conditions.

Majority investment properties of the Group are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further summary
details of which are included in Note 33.

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, investment properties of
approximately RMB458,000,000 (2022: RMB506,000,000)
were pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities
granted to a subsidiary of the Group to the extent of
RMB123,256,000 (2022: RMB141,256,000).

The following table presents the Group’s investment
properties measured at fair value in the consolidated
statements of financial position in accordance with the
fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy groups the
investment properties into three levels based on the
relative reliability of significant inputs used in measuring
the fair value of the investment properties. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available; and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

14.

REWZE &)
R-EBE-_=ZF+-_A=+—8  HAR
¥ 458,000,000 C(ZBE - —F : AR
506,000,0007T ) Bz & M 2 HF T R
T URBAEER—HNBARERZ—
AIRITERE AR ¥ 128,256,000 (=&
——F : AR¥141,256,0007T) °

TRENAKEREBERFERINERS B
BARKBAFEFEZREDE - RE
MERBHEZSEREVMEATFEMAE
RBABIEZ YA FEERAFERR
DR= - RTFERFIBEATEE

- S HREEZIREMSHRE
(REHE) :

- B EFAMBERENII
BEBEMSBASRE  LEXA
EXELBRZBARE - 858
RZBABBLENSEE &

- F=8: WENBEMEMSEE
REZEEBABE(BEIBEREZ
wABE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWME &)

The Group’s investment properties stated at fair value in REREBEH  AEEEHKE VBRI E
the consolidated statements of financial position at each WAFEINRZIEEMES BATAFEE
reporting date is grouped into the fair value hierarchy as A

follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& FH E=R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFTT ARETT ARMFT AREFT

Investment properties REBEMNIEE
located in Guangzhou,
the PRC
At 31 December 2023 R-ZE-=%F
—A=+—8H - - 500,100 500,100
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& Em E=& et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETT ARETFIT ARETT
Investment properties R B E N E Y2
located in Guangzhou,
the PRC
At 31 December 2022 i ———
+=-A=+—H - - 552,700 552,700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14.

2023

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (&

14.

—E-=

P E_—F A= —HIFFE)

BEME®)
E=R/ATEFEER

Relationship of

Valuation Unobservable unobservable
techniques input Range inputs to fair value
BLERZ BLERCWABER
EERD BAHE gE DNFENBE
Investment properties in -~ Market approach - Market rent RMB30-RMB190  The higher the market rent,

Guangzhou, the PRC
hEEMIREME

2022

investment method

M- REE

per square meter
BFHRAREOTE
ARE1907T
3.3%-7.9%

[ikorikn

Reversionary yield

e

—=— —

=

the higher the value
HERAHE - ATEES

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the value
ERNnEEE  RTESE

Relationship of

Valuation Unobservable unobservable
techniques input Range inputs to fair value
BEERZ BLERCWABESR
EERD BWABE gE DNFENBE
Investment properties in -~ Market approach - Market rent RMB24-RMB203  The higher the market rent,

Guangzhou, the PRC
hEEMIREME

investment method

M- REE

per square meter
BERRARK24LE
ARM2037T
3.5%-7.3%

[ikorikn

Reversionary vyield

e
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWE )
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements E=RATEFTEER(E)
(continued)
The movements during the year in the balance of these TR F_H/ATFEFTENEHREFHD
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: N
2023 2022
—E=-= —ZE-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT

Investment properties located in Guangzhou, RAEEEMNAKREE :

the PRC:
At 1 January n—HA—H 552,700 585,960
Additions IN=E 2,149 485
Decrease in fair value ER D (54,749) (49,445)
Transfer from completed properties held EBEABEREZERIME

for sale - 15,700
At 31 December R+—ZA=+—H 500,100 552,700
Fair value adjustment of investment properties is REMEN A FTERAERRGEER LEMm
recognised as “fair value changes on investment EHRARERZ[IREMHE L N FEEE
properties” on the face of the consolidated statement of e

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

15. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. BENRRE
Furniture,
fixture
Leasehold and office Motor

improvements equipment vehicles Total
HENE B %8

£ RBAZERE "E st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AEETT ARETT AEETT AEBTT

Cost [N
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—F—F—H 8,713 4,195 7,773 20,681
Exchange realignment BN AR 4 10 - 14
Additions NE - 31 7,756 7,787
At 31 December 2022 and RZEZZ+-A=+-H
1 January 2023 k=—Z-=%—A—H 8,717 4,236 15,529 28,482
Exchange realignment AR 1 3 = 4
Additions NE 1,323 - 2,822 4,145
At 31 December 2023 R-E-=F+-A=+—H 10,041 4,239 18,351 32,631

Deduct: accumulated depreciation 5 : BT ER FHEER
and impairment loss

At 1 January 2022 R-E--%—-F-H 7,780 3,093 6,438 17,311
Exchange realignment B AR 4 10 - 14
Depreciation e 309 464 2,566 3,339

At 31 December 2022 and WZE--F+-F=1+-H
1 January 2023 k=—Z-=%—-A—H 8,093 3,567 9,004 20,664
Exchange realignment B H R 1 3 - 4
Depreciation e 574 378 1,905 2,857

At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+-A=+—-A 8,668 3,948 10,909 23,525

Net book value BEFE

At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=5+ZA=1—H 1,373 291 7,442 9,106

At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—F#+-A=1+—H 624 669 6,525 7,818
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e BRI

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EAEEE
Leased
properties
HEWME
RMB’000
AREFITT
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-_=%+=-H=+—H
Carrying amount (note (i) SREEAE)) 1,755
As at 31 December 2022 R-BZZHf+=-A=+—H
Carrying amount (note (i) SREE(H520) 3,509
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_ZE-_=Ff+-A=+—HLEFE
Depreciation charge TELZH (1,754)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-—E-_—_f+-A=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge e (1,755)
note: Hiat -
0] No additions to the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities i) REBE-_Z-__Fk-FT_=%+-A
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2023. =+—RILEFE  HMECHEEERME
EBENFE -
2023 2022
—EZ=HF —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Expense relating to short-term leases FRRHPHEZHX 379 600
Total cash outflow for leases MECZRESRHRHE 2,419 2,541
The Group has obtained the right to use property as its NEFD FHBEEWZWMEENFERAD

office through tenancy agreements. The leases typically
run for an initial period of three years and without break-

clause for early termination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wrE B F AR MY T

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Golf club membership SEXALNEE

2023 2022
—EC=HE —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FrT AREFT

Cost AR
Additions and end of the year AR RNER 3,900 -
Deduct: Accumulated amortization R - BstEss
Charged for the year and end of the year FERNRERTH 390 -
Net book value REFE
At the end of the year RER 3,510 =
INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—EBE AT ZER
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Cost of investment adjusted for share of U R D5 — = AR
result of associate after acquisition EERBREB I EXAE 239,440 347,025
Less: unrealised profit in associate B B E A B 2 AR IR T (753) (890)

238,687 346,135
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e IR MR
(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

18. R—EBE QAR 2 E=®#)
TRBFIBLE A FOBE AR -

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The following list contains the particulars of the associate
which is a private company:

Proportion of
ownership interest

BRERLA
Held by a
Group’s subsidiary
Country of Paid-in effective  Held by the of the  Principal activities and
Name registration  capital interest ~ Company  Company places of operations
NG 2
F5E LN WEAR
28 EMER BERER BERES b BE IEEBREERY
Guangzhou Xintian Properties The PRC RMB210,503,607 30% - 30%  Property development in the
Development Limited PRC
(note (i), (i, (i) & (iv)
BNNRBHEERARAR  PE AE#210,508,6077T RAEHENEER

() ~ (i)~ (i & (i)

notes:

At -

(i

(i

(ii)

(iv)

The English name of the associate referred in these
consolidated financial statements represent management’s
best effort in translation of the Chinese name of the
associate as no English name has been registered or
available.

The statutory financial statements of the associate are not
audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED.

The associate is registered as limited company under the
PRC law.

Guangzhou Xintian Properties Development Limited is
operating in the PRC and is a strategic partner for the
Group in developing the property development business.

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR R MR
(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

R—EBE QT s @)
AMBERRZHBANEERIIMT -

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
associate is set out below. The summarised financial INTHBEERBMEZRBIBEE SV HREE
information below represents amounts shown in the BRB B E NRMEHREAMII T2 &
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance B

with HKFRSs:

Guangzhou Xintian

Properties
Development Limited
EMFREHERR
BRATR
2023 2022
—E-= —EF-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFIT
Current assets (note a) mEVEE (Kiita) 779,616 1,281,703
Non-current assets EmEEE 1,116 2,132
Current liabilities RERE 38,397 189,749
Non-current liabilities EmEBaE - 955
Equity M 742,335 1,093,131
Revenue g 65,370 11,465
Profit/(loss) for the year (note b) FEwM, (BER) (HiEb) 149,204 (13,484)
Other comprehensive income e TN - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EWA(BE)BE 149,204 (13,484)
Dividend income from the associate DR ARNEIE ]SSR N - 132,000
Reconcile to the Group’s interests in the HEAEEFAEHE ATES
associate HER
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate ~ Ei& /A al/F & E4A5E 742,335 1,093,131
Group's effective interest AEBERER 30% 30%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate AEEDEHERREEFE 222,700 327,939
Goodwill BES 3,828 3,828
Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition ~— UWEERE A FE LR L 12,912 15,258
Less: unrealised profit in associate B B R B 2 R B IR A (753) (890)
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial ~ R4RA P HRERNEEE
statements 238,687 346,135
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18.

notes:

(@) As at 31 December 2023, the associate had completed
properties held for sale, amounted to RMB175,091,000
(2022: RMB203,943,000), stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy.

(b) The profit for the year 2023 takes into account the sales
of car parking spaces and clubhouse, reversal of over-
provided land appreciation tax and interest income.

Reconciliation of share of result of an associate is
disclosed below:

R—EBE T 2R @)

Kist

(a) RIBE-=ZF+_A=+—8 BEQ
AMBEHEZERTIMEAARE
175,091,000t ( ZE - —F : AR
203,943,0007T) * LB AEE N LETIK
KR AR A Al # R EME 2 RIK
EUN: K

(o) TR =FHEAE REEEEMREAT
Ff5 - # [0l B 58 B /Y Tt 32 (B 7 R 7
BUA

D —HEBE AR EEZEEREN

™

2023 2022
—E-= —EFT=-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRT ARFETT

Profit/(loss) for the year FERF(EHE) 149,204 (13,484)
Group’s effective interest AEEER#ER 30% 30%
Group’s share of profit/(loss) before fair value — ZN5 B 7 (h U BE B A B AR

adjustments at acquisition Ars A (EE) 44,761 (4,044)
Change in effect of fair value adjustments at W N T EARTENZE)

acquisition (2,346) (383)
Group’s share of profit/(loss) REBEDREF](EE) 42,415 (4,427)
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e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

19. BREPYE

2023 2022
—ZE_-= —EF_—
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFRT ARETT

Properties under development

All properties under development are located in the PRC.
Land use rights are held on leases over 40 years.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, no properties under
development were pledged as collateral for the Group’s
borrowings granted to the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, properties
under development with an amount of RMB43,570,000
(2022: RMB1,852,637,000) were transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Amounts of properties under development expected
to be recovered within one year from the end of the
reporting period is approximately RMB4,664,000 (2022:
RMB86,629,000) and those after one year from the end of
reporting period is approximately RMB433,336,000 (2022:
RMB436,425,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the net realisable value of those
properties under development was found to be lower than
their carrying amount. Therefore, an impairment loss of
RMB24,271,000 (2022: net reversal of impairment loss
of RMB45,456,000) were recorded for properties under
development and included in the (impairment loss)/reversal
of impairment loss of properties under development on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

BRTYE

438,000 523,054

FRIARRTFYEDMLNFE - 58 LHE
PR BBE40%F -

RIBE-_—_FR-_F_=ZF+-_A=+—
B BEXEPYECEEAREERE
BIEFR 2 ARG ©

BE_ZT_=F+-_A=T—HIEFE -
© 8B ARBA43570,000L (=T ==
F: AR#1,852,637,0007T) WIEREF Y
ECERERELECERIME -

BRPYEBRAR RS BARET —FAK
BraBERAHNARK4664,000T(=ZF
——fF : AR%86,629,0007T) @ MR H
HEHREBF —FRREZ2EBAHAR
#£433,336,000 L (Z B —F : AR
436,425,0007T) °

R-ZE-_=ZF+=-_A=+—8 &MER
BRAYENTEEFELEREER -
Hit - BRAMESESHREBBEBAREK
24,271,000t (ZF == : FHESEE
[ % %8 A R # 45,456,000 ) W A 4R & 18
mREDEERTMECRERSE) RE
EEEE PR -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

20.

21.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR
SALE

20. FEHEZECRIYE

2023 2022
—E-= —=E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Completed properties held for sale, at cost BEREZERIME -
DN 1,745,582 2,352,041

The completed properties held for sale are located in the
PRC. Land use rights are held on leases over 40 years.

As at 31 December 2023, the net realisable value of those
completed properties held for sale was found to be lower
than their carrying amount. Therefore, an impairment
loss of RMB73,835,000 (2022: Nil) were recorded for
completed properties held for sale and included in the
impairment loss of completed properties held for sale on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2023, no completed properties
held for sale (2022: RMB428,574,000) were pledged
as collateral for the borrowings granted to the Group.
Under the facility agreements, the sales proceeds of the
properties were required to repay the related borrowings.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the completed
properties held for sale with an amount of RMB15,700,000
were transferred to investment properties.

FEREZCRIMEOURTE - FF
T ibfEMENEIBEBA0F -

RZE-_=F+_A=+—8 - HF%R
FERE 2R IYENAZRFELE
REER - Bl BIEHEZERITYME
PSR EEE ARK73,835,000L(=F
T E)UREEEREREE LFE
HEZERIME ZREEERIIE -

RZEBEZ=F+_A=+—8 #i@m(=
TZF - oA ARME428,574,0000T)
BEREZERIMEREIFIEAAREE
BRBITERZERR - BREREHZ
MR ESRIBABEHEBERK

BE-_ZTZ-_—F+-A=+—BLEE "
2 ANRE15,700,000THEFEELE 2
ERTIYECEREZREME -

TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BN
2023 2022
—E-= —=E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFIT AREFIT
Trade receivables JE U BR 5K
— from property investment —REMEERE 1,021 2,784
Less: allowance for expected credit losses W TBEMEEBERE (54) (1795)
Trade receivables — net FEMERF — F1E 967 2,609

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The directors of the Company considered that the fair
value of trade receivables are not materially different from
their carrying amounts because these amounts have short
maturity periods in their inspection.

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, trade
receivables are mainly arose from rental income from
investment properties. Proceeds are to be received in
accordance with the terms of related tenancy agreements.

Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables

21.

PEWBRFR (&)
ANFEERARKESR Y AT EREE

HEYHEEAEZR  DTHRKEREZE
SIRHREHREH -

R-B_=Ft-_A=t—RHBk=F—_—
F+-A=1T—H BUERRTIEXRER
EMERSEA - EKRBEREHABEE
195 5 BO fER SR UL

FEM R R 2 EEAE BB 1R 2 BB (E R R

are recorded using allowance accounts on trade Rz BERTE - FFIBIT
receivable is as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
At the beginning of the year F7) 175 276
Reversal of expected credit loss recognised ERREREEBER 2ED (121) (62)
Less: uncollectible amounts written off B EMEE 2 AT Y B IR - (39)
At the end of the year FR 54 175

At each reporting date, the Group reviews trade
receivables for evidence of expected credit loss on both
an individual and collective basis. As at 31 December
2023, no trade receivables (2022: RMB39,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in
financial difficulties and the management assessed that
the receivables were not expected to be recovered.

REBR S RE B HIRER R BEEER
AEBERRS LR EREEBRRESE
BeoRZTE_=F+=ZA=+—HB " 'K
SEZREANEEEEMERKER(ZE
——F : AR¥39,0007t) HIRRE - &
1) R 1B KO FE Uk BR 3R B B IR B 0 R P AR
W BRETHRAZSRUERFCTI AR
gEUR[E o
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Based on the terms of related tenancy agreements, the
ageing analysis of the trade receivables net of allowance
for expected credit losses is as follows:

21.

PEWBRFR (&)

R TEHME & B IR B 10 B KBRS IR A8 8
A BR R REDITOT -

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT ARETFIT
0 to 90 days 0Z90H 967 2,609

The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base being large and unrelated.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, none of the Group’s
trade receivables past due. These balances were related
to a large number of diversified customers that had a
good track record of credit with the Group.

The Group is holding rental deposits from tenants as
collateral in respect of trade receivables for rental income.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, all of the Group’s
trade receivables are denominated in RMB, no interest is
charged on trade receivables.

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#

HREFPEREAEEREE  FES
EERBER -

RIBEZZFR-_F=F+A=+—
B AEBREKERBIESH 254688
HBAETRAENEFENR  ZEEFRA
EEZBAGERLEERL -

AEBLHRBESRAZEBRERFTARE
MPOHEERSERERM -

R_E - —FN_T-_=F+-_fF=+—
B KAEBEMFAEKERYUARES
B - 748 5 FE U BR R 8. e
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 22,

OTHER RECEIVABLES

ANRE - RERHBEWER

Eh
TA

2023 2022
—E-= —EF-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT

Prepaid value-added tax TEHIEET 18,372 49,295
Other receivables, prepayments and EMERERR - BIRIER

deposits (note (a)) %Be (B a) 55,170 84,542

73,542 133,837

Less: Non-current portion A JEBNEER - (354)

Current portion B HAEE 5 73,542 133,483

All of the current portion prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or could be
withdrew within one year.

note:

(@) It mainly includes prepaid construction cost, residences
maintenance fund, rental and sundry deposits. As at 31
December 2023, advance receipts from customers for the
sale of properties under development of approximately
RMB41,148,000 (2022: 69,565,000) were placed in Xuzhou
Real Estate Management Service Center, a PRC local
government authority, for security purpose. The Group can
request for withdrawal of the balances in accordance to
agreed procedures for the payment of construction cost.

FRBERRE D FANFE - ke MEMEK
RRERE - FARENA] FRE -

#isz -

(@) TEBFEBENEERS  TEHEER
& MEeRFEES RZZE-_=F
+ZA=+—0  REEEERYES
BPUWEE KA AR 41,148,000 7T
(Z= =% : AK%69,565,0007T)2
GABRNEEEBREY L(FEMS
BFEBP)ERFBE ZA - NEB AR
BXAEERAZ B ERFERREBIZ
FHE o
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

23.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSIT

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposit include
the following components:

RERASSEWURTIEA
Be
BeRASEBNURELIFES BIEN
TR -

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTT AREFIT
Cash at bank and in hand SRITRFEEIR S 119,260 76,860

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group
approximately RMB118,243,000 (2022: approximately
RMB76,611,000) was denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

The bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.30% to 0.875% (2022: 0.35% to 0.625%)
per annum.

MARBESBEARA A 2023F F#H

AEERITEASCEHBETRNPEE
AIRITAANRE (T AR ) FHEZFHIBL
AR#118,243,000T(ZE = =4F : ZHA
R#76,611,0007T) - AR AT EH
Rz B o BT B IMNEE B0 R4
& SEMGESEHRT  ASERTSE
B REAEITIMNE R 2 RITHARE
HIRBINE -

IRITHEBUAMIGAERGTE  FRENTF
0.30%E0.875%(—ZF = —4F : 0.35% %
0.625%) ©
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TRADE PAYABLES 24, FENERR

Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables for construction from property development

MERBRENEMNERRILERB ZREK
DT

were as follows:

2023 2022

—EC-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFrT AREFIT
0 to 90 days 0%Z90H 374,410 515,064
91 to 180 days 91%180H 7 938
Over 180 days Hi®180H 3,233 2,577
377,650 518,579

FIA N EERTRB BN —FAEBHEAR
ZREEE - BARKX—REFEAHE
BIRF B HASAS ©

All of the trade payables are expected to be settled within
one year or are repayable on demand. The trade payables
are normally due immediately from the date of billing.

25.

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. EtERARHEMENRIA
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFIT AREFT
Rental received in advance from tenants and ~ P FENMZ & R EMILZES
other deposits 8,373 7,963
Tax and other levies HIE R & 1,100 1,662
Current account with an associate B — R B 2 N R R 0B
(Note 37(b)) (H7a£37(b)) 31,289 40,422
Amount due to a director of the Company JERARR—BRESBHIEB
(Note 37(b)) (K17#37(b)) 7,131 4,676
Other payables and accruals (note) H e 5RIE R EETE A
(Kiaz) 49,100 46,261
96,993 100,984

All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be FrEEABEA L EMEMATIBTEISE N —

settled within one year or are repayable on demand. FRNEBHARNEREFEE -
note: It included the accrued compensation for delay delivery ffad: HOREATESNEESARK

of RMB24,623,000 (2022: RMB25,539,000), accrued 24,623,000 (— B - =4 : AR
salaries, administrative expenses, finance costs and sundry 25,539,0007C) * B FH £ - T

creditors. ¥ BMERARFEBEMNFUE o
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES BHAE
2023 2022
—E-= —ZF-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT ARETFIT
Receipt in advance from customers EPENR(BEMEEE
in respect of property development oE8) — BIEAER &

segment — current portion

All the contract liabilities are expected to be settled
within the Group’s normal operating cycle and the whole
balances are classified as current.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, additions of
receipt in advance from customers and interest expenses
in respect of property development segment amounted to
RMB37,956,000 (2022: RMB67,669,000) and Nil (2022:
RMB60,452,000), respectively.

The revenue recognised in the current year in respect of

contract liabilities brought forward was RMB433,862,000
(2022: RMB176,972,000).

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#

369,896 765,802

FIBARNBERMNAREAEZEERD
KB REMERE Y BARAE -

BE-_ZT-_=F+-A=+—BIEE
WEMEZERHITHEFLANRENE
F s o Bl i1 A R #37,956,000 T ( =&
——%: AR¥67,669,000T) KT (=&
— =% : AR¥60,452,0007T) °

MARNANBERARNFERRZKEEAA
R #433,862,000c(ZF=—F : AR
176,972,0007T) °



26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

26. EHNERJE®

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

Movements in contract liabilities EHEERD
2023 2022
—E=-= —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Balance at 1 January —A—B#&&% 765,802 814,653
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of BB EANAFEER
recognising revenue during the year that YRt AEHEENKE
was included in the contract liabilities at the R >
beginning of the period (433,862) (176,972)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of BHBEHRNEEY) EIHE
receiving sales deposit related to sales of BHEMHEELES ML
properties 37,956 67,669
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of EHBEHRNZFTIENFFE
accruing interest expense on advances S Mg hn - 60,452
Balance at 31 December TZA=+—H&& 369,896 765,802

The Group normally receives 1%-36% (2022: 2%-59%) of
the contract value as deposits from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreements. This advance
payment are recognised as a contract liabilities until the
properties are completed and legally assigned to the
customer. The rest of the consideration is typically paid
when legal assignment is completed.

In addition, the Group considers the advance payment
schemes contains significant financial component and
accordingly the amount of consideration is adjusted for the
effects of the time value of money take into consideration
the credit characteristic of the relevant group entities. As
this accrual increases the amount of the contract liabilities
during the period of construction, it increases the amount
of revenue recognised when control of the completed
property is transferred to the customer.

EEITEEHER  AEE—RRARTFPIK
HAEXHBEMNI%EIK(ZE__F 1 2%
E59%)1ERES - WEENRERASE L
BB BEEVERIVKEIEZETES -
FIER(E —RETHOEEE ER T ©

BN - AREBER BN KT ERIEERN
CRMEARID ZRIEEEBNEER
B wEnEeRAENTERAERES
B8 o A LLFERTRUIBIE A E L EAE A A
BHEBEEHE  MRNEECRIYWENE
HETEPRMERN KRS SEITEE
e
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HE&EE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FIT ARETFIT

Lease liabilities payable: EFfHEEEE
Within one year —F R 2,024 1,729
Within a period of more than one year but BR—FETHBBAMT 2
not more than two years EABR A - 2,024
2,024 3,753
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 B RREIBEE TR
months shown under current liabilities TZEA AR EEHE
2 FIB (2,024) (1,729)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months RIERBEBERTI R+
shown under non-current liabilities &l A 1& 2| Bi4E & 2 518 = 2,024
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied EARNEa B INETYE S E S FxR
to lease liabilities is 11% (2022: 11%). B11%(—F = — 4 1 11%) -

174 FrRESEERAT 2023F F#H
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

28. BORROWINGS 28. B

2023 2022
—E== —EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Borrowings included in: AU TEBZER -
Secured bank loans repayable (note (a)) JEEE 2 BEMRITER
(Hiit@)

— Within 1 year ——FR 16,720 14,960

— After 1 year but within 2 years ——FREMFA 18,480 16,720

— After 2 years but within 5 years —MFERERFA 65,120 60,720

— After 5 years —HF1% 22,936 48,856
Other secured loans repayable (note (b)) JEfEE 2 B A EBER

(Htst )

— Within 1 year ——FR - 76,400

— After 1 year but within 2 years ——FREMFA - 52,800

— After 2 years but within 5 years —MFERERFA - 168,000

Total interest-bearing borrowings FHEERAREE 123,256 438,456
Less: Amount due within one year shown B RREBEE YR

under current liabilities —F N B2 IR (16,720) (91,360)

106,536 347,096

RIB_=ZFR_F_—_F+-_A=+—
B AEBEZTHUAARBE -

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group’s
borrowings were all denominated in RMB.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

28. BORROWINGS (continued)

notes:

(@)

The Group has variable-rate bank borrowings which are
repayable within 1 year to 7 years (2022: 1 year to 8 years)
and bearing interest at the People’s Bank of China 5 years
loan base interest rate plus 0.55% inflated rate. Interest is
repriced annually.

As at 31 December 2023, the effective interest rates
(which are also equal to contractual interest rates) on
the Group’s bank loans are 4.75% (2022: 5%) and
secured by investment properties (2022: secured by
investment properties and completed properties held
for sale). Furthermore bank borrowing amounting to
RMB123,256,000 (2022: RMB141,256,000) was also
secured by personal guarantee from a director, who is also
a major shareholder of the Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the effective interest rates on
Group’s other secured borrowings of RMB18,400,000
and RMB278,800,000 are fixed at 10.5% and 11.8%
respectively. As at 31 December 2022, the borrowings
were secured by completed properties held for sale and
equity interest of Xuzhou Shiyou Logistics Development
Co. Ltd., Yangzhou Shiyou Logistics Development Co.
Ltd. and Guangzhou Xianzhuang Properties Development
Limited, personal guarantee by a director of the Company,
corporate and personal guarantee provided by parties
connected with the aforementioned director.

MARBESBEARA A 2023F F#H

28. B

At -

(@

AEEREFLRITEN AR —FE
tFE(ZT2_—F —EN\F)REE

KRB ARRITAFEREENEN
0.55% 2 FEHIEFE - MEBFEE -

RZZZ=F+=ZA=+—H ' 6#
ZKE@%ETTE,TAZEK%WJI(JHHw
BHONE) BATE%(Z T ==
5%)1%&%%%%#&#(_2::
CUEREMERFEHEZERT
%%fﬂf&ﬁﬂ) BEoh - SRITERARE
123,256,000 (Z T = =F : AR¥
141,256,00070) 7 — B EE(TFAR
NAKEZRRE) Z EAERERE -

RZZZZF+ZA=1+—H  BEX
SEHA B ERERAR 18,400,000
JT X AR #6278,800,000 7T 2 B BR FIl &
5 B EE A10.5% K% 11.8% - R = F
ZoFEFTZA=+—RB BRIV E
HE 2B R TYERGINEERER
BRAR - HNEEYRERBRA A
REMNMEHEMERZEERATZK
- ARRAREFZEARR BERE
EHEB 2 ALREZ AR RMEAERF
YEIE IR o
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

DEFERRED TAX 29. ELEHIEA
The Group has total unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong REBBEREEBRFEHZ K ERTIBE
Kong and the PRC of approximately RMB225,218,000 BAEHEHARK225,218,0007t( —FE ==
(2022: approximately RMB232,646,000). Regarding F Y ARBE232,646,0007T) ° EREFY
the accumulated impairment loss of properties under ¥RBEREZERTIMERTREFSE
development and completed properties held for sale, an B2 AR ¥376,650,000L(—F ==
amount of RMB376,650,000 (2022: RMB278,544,000) was F : AR¥278,544,0007T) 58 BH 1%
subject to the agreement with the relevant tax authorities, HBREE REEHEZEEBEARZEK
that are available for offsetting against future taxable profits RIERT @A o iRIRPBEPEMEBRE
of the companies in which the losses arose. Under the ZEMBEBEUAS RS LT - WEZS
EIT Law of PRC, the tax losses could be carried forward Bt 188 1 TSR B2 TEDRI R 2R a8 1 A9 2 A LA BR 35
for a maximum of five years. Deferred tax assets have not ZEE - AT g Al EERERETHIE
been recognised in respect of these losses which arose in BE -
subsidiaries with unpredictability of future profit streams to
absorb such losses.
Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the temporary differences A A R31,600,0007TH B A 7K
associated with the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries DIRBNABAELREETIREEHIEAR
for the amount of RMB31,600,000 has been provided. In BE EERA - B ARK31,600,000
the opinion of the directors, except for RMB31,600,000, TN B AR RARRETE 5K
it is not probable that the subsidiaries will distribute such BHAEN RZZE_=F+ZHA=1+—
earnings in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December A AEBEHFBEQGHNEFNOAEARE
2023, the earnings of the Group’s PRC companies are 1,5635,195,0007t(ZE = —F : HARE
approximately RMB1,535,195,000 (2022: approximately 1,541,247,0007¢T) °
RMB1,541,247,000).
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when i 2 1E R FOR AT HE T A R HA T 18 & = B
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets BVERFRIE B EE AR - MREMSEY
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income KA —WS#E - ARELEFRENREEREA
taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The analysis of the &R T AR o BhBA 75 HmE B M EIRER
deferred tax balances for financial reporting purpose is as HEBRODITWOT ¢
follows:
2023 2022
—B-Z=F —E__F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Deferred tax asset RIETRIEE E = (1,116)
Deferred tax liability BEREIBEE 143,091 160,175
143,091 159,059
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. EEBLIE (%)
The net movements on deferred taxation liabilities/(assets) BEHEEE(BE)ZFEBWT -
are as follows:
Fair value
adjustments
Accelerated Undistributed Unrealised  Revaluation  arising from
tax profits of  Impairment contract of investment acquisition of
depreciation  subsidiaries of assets costs  properties subsidiaries  Tax losses Total
RUENE
HEAR AR AfEEL
MERERE  ADREN BENE AhRA  EftRENE  ATERER HEEE a3t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
NEETT  AREFT  AREFT ARETT  ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETR
Asat1 January 2022 RZEZ=
—-A—-H 36,018 - (696) 175 56,867 83,902 (6,351) 169,915
Exchange realignment (B 3 :3% 2 - - - - - - 2
Deforred tax charged/ ~ EMHB/(5tA)
(credited) to the profit B 2 EXEHE
or loss during the year 3,869 - 696 (175) (12,136) (8,366) 5,235 (10,877)
Asat31December ~ RZF-=F
2022 tZA=1-A 39,908 - - - 44,781 75,536 (1,116) 159,069
Bxchange realignment B 3 3% 6 - - - - - - 6
Deferred tax charged/ 3%/ (3t
(credited) to the profit  1E&Z BERE
or loss during the year 3,463 1,580 - - (13,492) (8,631) 1,116 (15,974)
Asat31December ~ RZF-ZF
2023 TZA=1+-H 43,367 1,580 - - 31,239 66,905 - 143,091

MARBESBEARA A 2023F F#H
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. WA
Number of
shares Amount
R E &8
HK$'000
FAET
Authorised: SETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each &R EI{E0.00475 7T (B fh
(before share consolidation) &0t R EREE
and HK$0.08 each (after share 0.08% T (& & pH1&)
consolidation): ZEBR
At 1 January 2022, R-ZZE-_—_F—H—H"
31 December 2022, B F+ZA
and 1 January 2023 —t+—BE-ZT-=4F
—H—H 125,000,000,000 500,000
Less: Share consolidation B R E ot (118,750,000,000) =
At 31 December 2023 R-E-_=F+-A=+—H 6,250,000,000 500,000
Number of
shares Amount Equivalent to
RGEE Ex-] HER
HK$’'000 RMB’000
FAET AREFIT
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
Ordinary shares of HRREE0.0047 T
HK$0.004 each (before (B&fn& oFRl) R B E
share consolidation) and 50.08/ B L (1D & HF
HK$0.08 each (after share Bz EBER
consolidation):
At 1 January 2022, W_E__F—H—H "
31 December 2022 and T _F+H
1 January 2023 =+—HERZ=ZE==
F—H—H 10,293,136,554 41,173 37,628
Less: Share consolidation B RE O (9,778,479,727) = =
At 31 December 2023 RIBZ=F
+=ZA=+—H 514,656,827 41,173 37,628

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2023

179



180

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

77 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

30.

31.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share consolidation

On 24 August 2023, the Board proposed that every 20
shares in the issued and unissued share capital of the
Company be consolidated into 1 consolidated share
(the “Share Consolidation”). The Share Consolidation
was approved by the shareholders at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 11 September 2023 and
the same became effective on 13 September 2023. Upon
the Share Consolidation becoming effective, there were
514,656,827 consolidation shares in issue which were
fully paid or credited as fully paid.

Details of the Share Consolidation were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 24 August 2023
and 11 September 2023 respectively.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein during the year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(i) Share premium and capital redemption
reserve

The application of share premium account is
governed by Section 40 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

The capital redemption reserve of the Group
represents the nominal value of the share capital of
the Company repurchased and cancelled.

(ii) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the surplus arising from the Group’s capital
reorganisation in respect of its capital reduction,
share subdivision and share consolidation in 2003.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

RmiE®

RESERVES (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Contributed surplus (continued)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is available for
distribution to shareholders. However, a company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus; if:

- the company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or

- the realisable value of the company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

Capital reserve

Reserve are transferred from retained earnings for
compensation if loss and any accident incurred
in the future. The capital reserve arose due to the
acquisition of PRC subsidiaries in previous year
and re-organisation of Hong Kong subsidiaries in
previous years.

Currency translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2.

Fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve

The fair value through other comprehensive income
reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of financial assets at the end of each
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.

31.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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31. RESERVES (continued) 31. B
(vi) Statutory reserve (vi) EERFE
PRC companies are required to allocate 10% PR AR ZERIARFEFZ10%E
of the companies’ net profits to the statutory FEEREES EERESEENR
reserves fund until such fund reaches 50% of AIFFME AR 250% ° &L AR R HE
the companies’ registered capitals. The statutory o EERBESTTAUEEZRE
reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the EE(ME )L AT FEMER -
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses, HEBAESRLBERR ARG
if any, or to increase registered capital of the BEARZ225% °

companies, provided that such fund is maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered

capitals.
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. BEAREAE
2023 2022
—E-= —=E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Capital commitments (contracted but not BAREYE(BRTAERERE) -
provided for):
Capital injection into an associate m—HEEAREE - 26,249
Construction costs of properties under R APV REMAR
development 4,085 62,583

4,085 88,832

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 33. REHERH

As Lessor EREHMEA
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the total future minimum RIE_=FN_FE-_—_F+_-_A=+—
lease receivable by the Group under non-cancellable A AEERBETIHECEHERIE
operating leases in respect of investment properties are as YR BEEEEFIBLABEOT -
follows:
2023 2022
—E== —=E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
Within one year —FR 938 1,157
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

LOAN FACILITIES 34. EXEE
As at 31 December 2023, the loan facilities including bank R-ZE-_=ZF+=-A=+—0 " EX®mE
loans (2022: including bank loans and loans from financial BRERTER(ZZE__F : 8ERTE
institution). RREBBEEE) °
Loan facilities from banks amounted RMB123,256,000 KBRITZERREE ARY123,256,000
(2022: RMB141,256,000) were fully utilised at the end of T(ZE=—F : AR¥141,256,0007T)
2023. It was secured by the Group’s investment properties ERZZE_=ZFREBHHA - HULEH
and personal guarantee from a director (2022: secured by CHREMER —BEE(IREARANE
the Group’s investment properties, completed properties ERE) 2EABREREF(ZE ==
held for sale and personal guarantee from a director), who NAEBZREYZE  BELEZERT
is also a major shareholder of the Company. WER—BEZZEARREER)
Other loan facilities amounted RMB410,800,000 were Hib & 5@ E » AR #410,800,0007T
utilised as to RMB297,200,000 as at 31 December 2022. R-E-_—_F+_A=+—HEHAHE
They were secured by completed properties held for sale, B AR#297,200,000 c RZE ==
equity interest of Xuzhou Shiyou Logistics Development +-A=+—8 EHEUBELEZERT
Co. Ltd., Yangzhou Shiyou Logistics Development Co. W - GMNEEBYRERBRAR - HM
Ltd. and Guangzhou Xianzhuang Properties Development HEYRERAER AR MEMNTEHEH
Limited, personal guarantee by a director of the Company, EREBERARZEE AAREE 2
corporate and personal guarantee provided by parties AER B EMESEERE 2 ATREZ
connected with the aforementioned director as at 31 Nl R AE AERVEE IR o
December 2022.
There are no loan facilities granted to subsidiaries which RZEZ=FR_FT_F+_HA=1—
are secured by the corporate guarantee of the Company as B BERTHBARZERBETIUAR
at 31 December 2023 and 2022. NAZ RNEERIEEA
PLEDGED OF ASSETS 35. EEEHA
At the end of reporting period, the following assets of the RBEBR - NEEK T EERF TR
Group were pledged to banks and financial institution in ThkepigkE  AAEEERMERER
order to secure the borrowings granted to the Group: 7
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Completed properties held for sale RIERE2ER I = 428,574
Investment properties WEME 458,000 506,000
458,000 934,574

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2023

183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR MR
(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

36. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING 36. AREXREEBEKED
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Amount Current
due to account
an executive with an Lease
Borrowings director associate liabilities

Bff -8 H-REuE
& ESNE  DAERRE RERR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARKTR ARKTR ARK TR

At 1 January 2023 RZZZ=F-A-H 438,456 4,676 40,422 3,753

Changes from financing cash flows ~ BEELHELEH

Repayment of bank loans BERTER (18,000) = - -
Repayment of other secured loans BEEMBERER (297,200) = - -
Net movement of amount due to ER—BHTESHETE

an executive director - 2,455 - -

Repayment of principal of lease liabilitles  EEREAERE - - = (1,729)

Interest element of lease liabilities paid BN EEEHFISHS - - = (311)

Interest paid on borrowings R FIE (22,015) - - -

Total changes from ITEE 2845

Financing cash flows BERSRE (337,215) 2,455 = (2,040)

Other changes: Higs

Capital reduction from an associate RE RIS D RAALR

(note a) RAFE W ita) - = (9,133) =

Finance costs BENAK 22,015 - - 311

Total other changes ApEHng 22,015 - (9,133) 311

At 31 December 2023 W_ZE-=#+-F=1—H 123,256 7,131 31,289 2,024

note: Kyt -

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group (@) RBEZZE-_=F+-A=+—HILF
agreed with an associate that the current account with an B AEEE-fHEREARIHE  H—
associate of RMB9,133,000 was settled by offsetting the i B 2 X A) 7 2RGRIE A R #69,133,000
capital reduction receivable from an associate of the same T A SH AR [F) & 58 A JE Wi sk % R BRI
amount. BRARIER T RAEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

36. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING 36. AREXRBELZBBEEH(®)
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)
Amount Current
due to account
an executive with an Lease
Borrowings director associate liabilities
Ef—2H#1T Bl
B BEE  NAANE BEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

NEETT NERTT ANEBTT ANEEBTT

At 1 January 2022 RZBZZE-f-H 562,732 1,633 112,173 5,264

Changes from financing cash flows ~ BERLHELE

Proceeds from other secured loans BB ERESENE 133,800 - = =

Repayment of bank loans BERTER (135,976) - - -

Repayment of other secured loans EBEEHARRER (122,100) - - -

Net movement of current account with S —FRML DA/ RFES

an associate k) - - 249 -
Net movement of amount due to an Eff—gHTESHEEE
executive director - 3,143 - -

Repayment of principal of lease liabilties  EEME&ELAS - - - (1,511)

Interest element of lease liabilities paid 2 EBENFIEHH - - = (430)

Interest paid on borrowings BRERZFE (34,196) - - -

Total changes from WTEE2BEE

Financing cash flows REBLTE (158,472) 3,143 249 (1,941)

Other changes: H%s

Dividend income from an associate RE—HBEDANREBA

(note b) (M) = = (72,000) -

Finance costs BERKA 34,196 = = 430

Total other changes Etu Dt 34,196 = (72,000) 430

At 31 December 2022 WZZE-_—F+-A=1—H 438,456 4,676 40,422 3,753

note: Kiet -

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group (b) HE_Z-_—_F+-_FA=+—HILF
agreed with an associate that the current account with an B AEEE-EEEQATWE - H2—
associate of RMB72,000,000 was settled by offsetting the fEf e & 2 A 72 2R 5k 1E A R 72,000,000
dividend receivable from an associate of the same amount. TEBHIEARSENKE —EEE R

AIH) IR SR E
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BEHMALRS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
the Group had the following significant transactions with
related parties:

(a) Compensation of key management
personnel
The directors are of the opinion that the key
management personnel were the executive and
non-executive director of the Company, details of
whose emoluments are set out in Note 11.

(b) Balance with related party

B?BAEZ
RABERIN - AEE D ERBALTETT

EHREVBHRREMBOREZIR

75'J$K§% :

(a)

(b)

TEEBEASHE

EERR - ARBZHAITRIERT
EXERTEEEEAR  WEZHMH
B AN R

EARAME A T 2 AR

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFIT

Balances due to related parties: R A T2 &
Associate: B NT
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN AEHEZER
Development Limited (note (a)) BRAR (K it@)
Executive Director: HITES
Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (note (b)) sRen B AE (K i D)
Lease liabilities: HEBE:
Related company: 22} N
Tianlun Holdings Limited Company KmiZElRBRA
(note (e)) (M5t (e)
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BEBALXRZ &)
(continued)
(c) Transaction with related party (c) HEBALZRS
2023 2022
—EB-=F —=E-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT

Realised deferred management fee RE B AL EERRE
income from a related party: BEBIA
Associate: i =T
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN AEEERBR AT
Development Limited (note (c)) (Bi&t(c) 33 6

Realised deferred interest income on HLTEBALTERZEEIA

loan to a related party: IRIEF) BUA -
Associate: B NT
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN REEZERBR AR
Development Limited (note (d)) (Hte(d) 104 17
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

37. EBALRZ @

(continued)
(c) Transaction with related party (continued) (c) EHEEBALTZRZ(E)
2023 2022
—E-=fF g
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFIT AREFT
Repayment of principal and interest M—HEBATEEHESRE
element of lease liabilities to a related ~ HYAD KA EZH -
party:
Related company: RN T :
Tianlun Holdings Limited Company Ki@iZER AR AR (A ite)

(note (e)) 2,040 1,941
Corporate/personal guarantee provided RBIlEA TR AEEEFHFE

by related parties in respect of loans RIEZ AR EAER

facilities of the Group:

Parties related to a director of the HEAQNTNEEEBB 2 AL :

Company:

Tianlun Holdings Limited Company K@i GR AR (1))

(note (f)) - 110,800
Mr. Zhang Guo Ming (note (f)) S B8R 5 A (MY At ) - 110,800
Director: 2%

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (note (g)) R BRE (K aZ () 123,256 552,056
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

notes:

(@)

Balances due to an associate are unsecured, interest
free and no fixed repayment terms in the year ended 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

Balance due to an executive director is unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.

Management fee income from an associate was charged at
a negotiated value, deferred and recognised at applicable
basis.

The deferred interest income on a previous loan to an
associate was realised during the year.

It represents the lease liabilities payable to a related
company for the right of use of a property as back office
for a term of 3 years. The balance is repayable within 1
year (2022: 2 years). It was charged at a negotiated value.

As at 31 December 2022, the underlying loan facilities to
subsidiaries were jointly guaranteed by the close family
member of a director of the Company and a company
controlled by that close family member Tianlun Holding
Limited Company which amounted to RMB110,800,000
were utilized as to RMB110,800,000.

The underlying loan facilities to subsidiaries guaranteed
by the director of the Company amounted to
RMB123,256,000 (2022: RMB552,056,000) were utilized
as to RMB123,256,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB438,456,000).

37. BEBALIXRB (&)

Wyt -

(@) BHE-_ZT-_=F+-A=+—AK=F
—ZF+= HZ+—E¢¢? FET—
M S ARG AEIRT S RER
mﬁm%@

b) RN—ZRTEFEBAEER 28
RARERBEE -

(©) KA —fHEERBZERBRARGE
EBERR  BRENRIREREERR -

(d) ZA%-F?H@?%’AﬂZ%ﬁE%%&Z‘}EEﬂ
BIRABRFRNER

© HiEEp —ARERAMAERM=6F2
WESEREMEMS T —REHLRZHA
BEafE - #EHAR—F(ZF ==
ME)AZN - IR HREES A -

(f) RZFE_=—F+=—A=+—H BA—%
ZIN/N Té%EﬁL%ﬁ&zzLﬂFﬂ GO VA
AIRMIERERAREREROKEA
AIEBEER mﬂﬁz%/\ﬁﬁmmsooooo
7T 2R AR#110,800,0007E 8 -

©) EEZIK/‘ﬁE%%%%W%E’JWE“ﬂHEﬁ
EX@E AARK123,256,0007T (=
— =% : AR¥552,056,0007T) %I
ZE-=F+ A=+ —HHEFARE
123,256,000t EEBH (=T ==
AR #438,456,0007T) °
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
market risk (including currency risk and interest risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. Generally, the Group employs
a conservative strategy regarding its risk management.
Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of
directors periodically. The overall objectives in managing
financial risks focus on securing the Group’s short to
medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to
financial markets. Long term financial investments are
managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable risk
levels. As the Group’s exposure to market risk (including
currency risk and interest risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk are kept at a minimum level, the Group has not used
any derivative or other instruments for hedging purposes.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The most significant
financial risks to which the Group is exposed are
discussed below.

As at the reporting date, the Group’s financial instruments
mainly consisted of cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade
payables, accruals and other payables and borrowings.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 38.
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(a)

Categories of financial assets and

liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the Group’s

statements of consolidated financial position relate

BREREERAFETFE®E)
(a) TRMEEREEZER

AR E A MBS BE 252
BERNTeREERSBA SR

to the following categories of financial assets and RIBEHE
financial liabilities:
Financial assets THEE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Financial assets measured at amortised — IZ# KA B2 S REE
cost
— Trade receivables — EUER K 967 2,609
- Deposits and other receivables — ke REA AR 54,985 84,510
— Cash and cash equivalents B MRS EEY 119,260 76,860
175,212 163,979
Financial liabilities zHEE
2023 2022
—EC-=F —=F-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFIT AREFIT
Financial liabilities measured at amortised (Z# KA EZ S REE
cost
- Trade payables —ERTERK 377,650 518,579
- Accruals and other payables — R ERA R EMmER
IR 95,820 99,092
- Borrowings — &K 123,256 438,456
596,726 1,056,127

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2023

191



192

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency.

The functional currency of the Company and its
major subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
Dollar (“HK$”) in which most of the transactions
are denominated. The functional currency of those
subsidiaries operating in PRC is RMB in which most
of its transactions are denominated. Certain bank
balances of the Group are denominated in HK$ and
RMB respectively. As at the reporting date, foreign
currencies were translated into RMB at the closing
rate.

The management considers future commercial
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in the functional currency of each
entity of the Group. Therefore, the foreign currency
risk is immaterial.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and
are considered to be effective.
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38. B¥EAREERRAFETFE S

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from the ordinary course of its operations.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalent included in the face of the consolidated
statement of financial position and the amount of
financial guarantees issued represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

The credit risks on cash and cash equivalent are
limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institution with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The credit risks on deposits and other receivables
are limited because the counterparties are mainly
government authorities which are considered with
very low risk of default.

Deposits and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents are considered to have low credit risk
and therefore the loss allowances are measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

The credit risks associated with financial guarantee
is considered as limited and mitigated because
they are secured over the properties sold to the
corresponding customers.

(c)

EE R R ER
EERRESRIAZRFT REE
RESBMTAZGRETEEEM
SAKERIPBREZAR - K
SEAZZEERREIERERNA
FEBBIE -

BRERA BB R Z BURRR
Be REMBYIRFIARIRS MR
THFEVEREERR OOV BER
TER/AREREYBEEAT 2

RAEERR -

R

RekBReEBUZEERRE
R RESH T RRTRAEER
EEFARBETREEFANE
B -

mehEMEREER 2 EERRE
R RESHTEESREHE
BEERSEAREEQRR -

Be RHEMEWIRFARR € RE
SEEVHAREBRERERR
BEERBHZAER + —EAEH
EEBRZSEAE -

EPBRERERNERERBRER S
BEREEBER  RARZEFRRITD
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(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

For the rents receivables from property investment,
the Group has policies in place to ensure that
leases are made to tenants with an appropriate
financial strength and appropriate percentage
of down payments and rental deposits. It also
has other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade/rents
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counter parties and customers.

The credit policies to manage credit risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

BREREERAFETFE®E)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 38.
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) FEERBRRBENMGE
(continued)
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, ERASBEERRBER 2 —
the Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the D REBUEHAZRKREED
impairment for its customers in relation to its XRELENHARTP ZRE It
property investment operation because these THRZERFEEAEEEHE
customers consist of a large number of small RREFE#H2NEERE - BARBRE
customers with common risk characteristics that FRIBEE HGRFK AR HIE
are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay BIgE N o TRIBHAE BN KA TEH
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual EEEBERNERANERED B IE
terms. The following table provides information WHHe(RZTEZ=FKr=2F=_=
about the exposure to credit risk for rents F+ A=+ HLEEREET
receivables of the property investment segment HEERRZER -
which are assessed based on provision matrix as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 within lifetime ECL.
Gross carrying amount REAEE
2023 2022
“EC-ZE “E-F
Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
carrying Average on trade carrying Average on trade
amount lossrate  receivables amount lossrate  receivables
ek el
FE&E TYERE BREE BESE T9EEE B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABETT ARKEFLT  AEETT NEETFT
Current (not past due) kG sat:i) 1,021 5.21% 54 2,784 6.27% 175
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 38.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Gross carrying amount (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based
on historical observed default rates adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

The following tables show the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables
under the simplified approach:

BREREERAFETFE®E)
(c) EERRBRRBEFMGE)

HRE#E(E)

BT BERERIRBEELBRENE
mfbat - W BAN B TS ERA
B N BRI BUS Z ATHE B FHE

A -

TRINRRIEBCTTED BRI
R ZKATEIMEEER &

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
KAEH KARH
Gl =
(kEERE) (FEHE) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETFT ANEETFT ANEETFT

As at 1 January 2022 S o =

(Reversal of)/allowance for expected credit ~ ERZRAEEHEED) /Bl
loss recognized

Uncollectible amounts written off B2 A FE
As at 31 December 2022 R-B--%+-A=+-AH

Reversal of expected credit loss recognized ~ ERZELEEHEEE

As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=F+-A=+-H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R MY R

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

BREREERAFETFE®E)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk arises from
interest bearing bank deposits and borrowings at
variable interest rate. Borrowings at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy and will consider enter into interest
rate hedging should the need arise. The Group
ensures that it borrows at competitive interest rates
under favourable terms and conditions.

Management considers the exposure to the
changes in market interest rate for bank deposits
should not be materially enough to cause adverse
financial effect on the Group’s position.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.

38.

(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 38. MKEMREERANFEFE®
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
(d) Interest rate risk (continued) (d) R=REE(E)
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through AN B A B 2 I R & i
the impact of the rate changes on interest-bearing ZHEER o  NEBILEZTF
borrowings. The interest rates and terms of R R EE IR T RIS |
r(i]paymen’[bof| thefirtoup f mierest—f.t:ef\rl;? Icg:lns ate IR o ANEE Y T AR EE
s o.wnlas eow interest rate profile - e Group’s BEEFE o
policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates
available for the borrowings.
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIEHR
The following table details the interest rate TRFLARRERRE AR
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end fERZ MRS
of the reporting period.
2023 2022
—EC-cE “E-C
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
ERA%E ik
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
AREFR NEETT
Fixed rate borrowings EEER
Other borrowings from financial A e REERER
institutions = - 10.5%-11.8% 297,200
Variable rate borrowings BEER
Bank borrowings BITER Atthe 123,256 Atthe 141,256
People’s People’s
Bank of Bank of
China 5 years China 5 years
loan base loan base
interest plus interest plus
0.55% 0.55%
inflated rate inflated rate
REBAREH B AREST
Sk
£¢§§§$ ﬁﬁ%ﬁm%
1 =
i 10.55%2
1M0.55% 2 EE T
pEEIES
Total borrowings @iz 123,256 438,456
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2023)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points
(2022: 50 basis points) in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after
tax and accumulated loss by approximately
RMB616,000 (2022: RMB530,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss
after tax and accumulated loss and other
components of equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group’s loss after tax and
accumulated loss and other components of
equity is estimated as an annualised impact
on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2022.

38.

e IR R R MY R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(e)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial assets. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade payables, accruals and other payables,
lease liabilities, financial guarantee, borrowings and
also in respect of its cash flow management. The
Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate
level of liquid assets and committed lines of funding
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a
consolidated basis by carefully monitoring the cash
inflows and outflows due in day to day business.
Liquidity needs are monitored in various time
bands, on a day to day and week to week basis, as
well as on the basis of a rolling 30 day projection.
Long term liquidity needs for a 180-day and 365-
day lookout period are identified monthly.

The Group’s liquidity is mainly dependent upon
the cash received from its tenants of investment
properties and customers of trading property held
for sale and funds financing for property under
construction. The directors of the Company are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full
its financial obligations as and when they fall due in
the foreseeable future.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to be
effective in managing liquidity risks.

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 38. M¥EREER AFETE®E)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (continued) (e) RBESEME)

The following tables detail the remaining contractual TERFVNAEBRARRETES
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s and BEERHREABZFGA N
the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, BRI EREGHORUBERESRE
which are based on contractual undiscounted P& ENNS BN S A D)
cash flows and the earliest date the Group and RBEZEHBEMmMEL - A8ER
the Company can be required to pay. Specifically, HORTEREREREENE
bank loans are included in the earliest time band B M miRITBEBITE A AR
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing FMEBEE - TRBEMNBERAESE
to exercise their rights. The table includes both BB

interest and principal cash flows:

As at 31 December 2023
R-BZZE+ZA=1-8
Weighted Total Within Between Between
average contractual one year one year two years
interest Carrying undiscounted oron and two and five ~ More than
rates amount cash flow demand years years five years
TS SRR —£R -£% MEE

fi REE ReREAR  IEEX mER EEH BRI
%  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETZ  ARETT  ARETZ  ARETZ

Trade payables ERE - 377,650 377,650 (377,650) - - -
Other payables o ERFE - 95,820 95,820 (95,820) - - -
Lease liabiities (principal  EE B B (XL

amount plus interest) flg) 11% 2,024 2,141 (2,141) - - -
Borrowings (principal (AL ENAE)

amount plus interest) 4.75% 123,256 144,841 (22,575) (23,540) (74,700) (24,026)
Financial quarantees HBERMH0)

Note 40) - 2479 2479 2479 - - -

601,229 622,931 (500,665) (23,540) (74,700) (24,026)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (continued)

38.

BREREERAFETFE®E)

(e) RBEZRB(HE)

As at 31 December 2022
RZEZZE+ZR=1—H

Weighted Total Within Between Between
average contractual one year one year two years
interest Garrying  undiscounted or on and two and five More than
rates amount cash flow demand years years five years
T ANRER —£R %z e
X BEE Henssg FHEX MER ik #RLE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANRETT  ARETT  AREFT ARKFT  AEETT ARETT
Trade payables A& - 518,579 518579 (518579) - - -
Other payables AR - 99,092 99,092 (99,002) - - -
Lease liabilties [principal ~ FE & B (AEEN
amount plus interes) flg) 11% 3,753 4,179 2,089) 2,140) - -
Borrowings (principal (A2 EMFIE) 5% 102
amount plus interest) 11.8% 438,456 531,547 (127,210) (98,117) (253,649) (62,571)
Financial quarantees ~ BHER(#:240)
(Note 40) - 1,550 1,550 (1,550) - - -
1,061,430 1,154,947 (748 470) (100,257) (253,649) (62,571)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing
goods and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration the
future capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group regards total equity attributable to the
owners of the Company presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of financial position as capital,
for capital management purpose. The amount of
capital, being share capital, share premium, currency
translation reserve, capital reserve, contribution surplus,
capital redemption reserve, fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve, statutory reserve and
accumulated losses, as at 31 December 2023 amounted
to approximately RMB1,635,461,000 (2022: approximately
RMB1,669,936,000), which the management considers
as optimal having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the forecast strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

39.

EXEHE

AEE 2 EAEEABARRAEELES
BeE  REBRKERRRYTLRAR
ASTEPA L e e

AEBEGELERRTEEELEAR
B AREEINAEEZAREARE
BRI MR EAR MR RIEIRE#
g BREBKEEARE MR E R

RERKABRERER  AREERAE
ARERIRN 2 RS ~ FARFEREER - 2%
TH I E B EAREETR

REAEEMS - A5EBEE T EAM
MERMEINZARA A AEHEER
BIEBR - RZBE-_=F+_-_A=+—
HzEBEXRBE(BRE ROEE - B%
RREE - BEXREE BARK - EX
BEOfFE BAFEFAEMZEEA
i EERBREFER)OARKE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 40. BHIEHEIR
2023 2022
—E-= —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT ARETFIT
Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities for ARNEBILHYWEEMER
certain purchasers of the Group’s property IR BB ER(AE)
units (note) 2,479 1,550

note:

The Group was in cooperation with certain financial
institutions and arranged mortgage loan facility for its
purchasers of properties and provided guarantees to
secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments.

As at 31 December 2023, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to RMB2,479,000 (2022: RMB1,550,000). Such
guarantees will be discharged upon the earlier of (i) issuance
of the real estate ownership certificate which will generally
be available within one year after the purchasers take
possession of the relevant property; and (i) the satisfaction
of relevant mortgage loan by purchasers.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to the banks, and the Group is
entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the
related properties. The Group’s guarantee starts from the
dates the mortgagees obtained the mortgage loans.

The directors consider that the likelihood of default in
payments by purchasers is minimal and therefore the
financial guarantees measured at fair value are immaterial.

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LUk e

=)

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

41. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 41. RMEAR 2R
Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=F+_A=+—RHKkR=ZZT==
31 December 2022 were as follows: F+ZA=1+—H WBRAZFBENT :
Proportion of
ownership interest
HRERLA
Held by a
Place/country of Group's subsidiary
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ effective  Held by the of the  Principal activities and
Name registration registered capital interest Company Company  places of operations
RRFZ
AL/ BRARA/ 158 b HEAR
8 /AR gifgs ERER ] BE IERBREEHY
Canton Million Investments British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding in
Limited (note (ii)) (‘BVI) Hong Kong
Canton Milion Investments EBRUES 157 REBHSREALR
Limited (2 ii)) ([RERRES])
Grandwill International Investment ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Inactive
Limited
ERERRAERAT &R 17T s 3
Guangzhou City Liwan Qi Che Zhi The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Property investment in
Pei Factory Company Limited the PRC
(note (i) & (iv))
BT #E B AERERAR e AR #10,000,00070 R ENERE
(k)
Guangzhou Fanzhan Trading Limited  The PRC RMB10,500,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(note (i), (i) & (iv)) in the PRC
EMREESERAT HEl AR%10,500,0007 RAERERERR
(B )~ (i) %))
Guangzhou Fengmao Real Estate  The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Development Limited the PRC
(note (i), (i) & (iv))
EMEREHEREERAR el AR #10,000,00070 KA ERERR
(B - ()R ()
Guangzhou Gaotian Investment The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development and
Limited (note (i) & (iv)) property investment in
the PRC
EMBRRAERAT el AK%20,000,0007 RAERENEERR
(W& ) ESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

41. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. RMBRRIZER= (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest
KRR A
Held by a
Place/country of Group’s subsidiary
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ effective  Held by the of the  Principal activities and
Name registration registered capital interest Company Company  places of operations
KRRZ
e,/ BRIRA/ LS 4] RAH HEAR

£ s/ A% gifEs EREL B8 BE IEXBREZHY

Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics The PRC RMB48,880,000 100% - 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. (note (i), (iv) & (v)) in the PRC

ENEBYRERAT H AK%48,880,0007 RABRIENEER
(Bt ~ (v)B()

Guangzhou Kinyang Real Estate The PRC RMB112,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. property investment in
(note (i), (i) & (iv)) the PRC

BMEGEHEERERAR el ARH112,000,0007T RAEERENEERR
(W)~ (i ) NERE

Guangzhou Shihui Commercial The PRC RMB1,500,000 100% - 100%  Inactive

Clubhouse Management Limited
(note (i), (i) & (iv))

BMEHEEMERERAR e AFR%1,500,0007 s 3
(B i) ~ (i) & iv))

Guangzhou Talent Shoes Market ~ The PRC RMB2,000,000 90% - 90%  Property management in
Management Limited the PRC
(note (i) & (iv))

BNRREZTSEEERARAR & AE%2,000,0007C RPEENRER
(W& )

Guangzhou Xianzhuang Properties ~ The PRC RMB33,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development in
Development Limited the PRC
(note (i) & (iv))

BNTEREHEREERAT f AE#%33,000,00070 REEENFER
(iR )

Guangzhou Xinzhuo Properties The PRC RMBS,000,000 100% - 100%  Property management in
Management Limited the PRC
(note (i, (i) & (iv))

BAMENZERARAT e AE#3,000,0007C RPERENRER

(W)~ ()X v)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

41. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. RMEBLAT 2R (E)

Proportion of
ownership interest
KRR
Held by a
Place/country of Group’s subsidiary
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ effective  Held by the ofthe  Principal activities and
Name registration registered capital interest Company Company  places of operations
KRFZ
e,/ BRRA/ LS 1] RRH HEAR
£ ik Bx gifEs ERER B8 BE IEXBREZHY
Guangzhou Yijie Cleaning Company ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
Limited (note (), (i & (iv)) PRC and provision of
cleaning services
BMBZRZERAT e AF%1,000,0007C RABEEERERRR
(W) ~ (i) & i) REEZRYS
Guangzhou Yongxiang Investment  The PRC RMB11,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
Limited (note (i) & (iv)) PRC
BMARREBRAA M E W) + AK%11,000,0007 RBfERERR
Haikou Yicheng Industries Limited ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% = 100%  Investment holding in the
(note (i), (i) & (iv)) PRC
BOAREXARATA el AK%10,000,0007 RBfERERR
() ~ (i (i)
Mark World Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% = 100%  Investment holding in the
PRC
EEEXARAA Bl 1A RPERESRESR
Neo Bloom Limited (note (i) BVI US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Hong Kong
HABRAR (i) EERAEE %7 REBULERERR
Profit Venture Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% = 100%  Investment holding in the
PRC
KERERRAT & 10,0007 RABERERR
Smart Key Global Limited (note (iij)) ~ BVI US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Hong Kong
Smart Key Global Limited (#7z2(ii) EBEZES e REANSRARR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

41. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. RMBRRIZER= (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest
RRERLY
Held by a
Place/country of Group’s subsidiary
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ effective  Held by the of the  Principal activities and
Name registration registered capital interest Company Company  places of operations
KRRZ
AL/ BRIRA/ LS 4] KRR WEAR
£ i/ BR BHMER EREL B8 BE IEXBREZHY
Sure Win Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
PRC
KREZARAA R 10087 KB ERERR
Talent Central Limited (note (i) BVI US$101 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Hong Kong
Talent Central Limited (/32 EERAES 101%71 REBRERERR
Talent Property Group Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
(note (i), (i) & (iv)) PRC
HAHEEEERAT el A& #50,000,00070 RAERERERR
(B - (i) B(v))
Talent Property Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - 100%  Inactive
FRBERRAA 3 10,000/ 7 i
Talent Prosper Corporation (note (i) BVI Us$2 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Hong Kong
ReEEERARA ML) EERAHES T REBURERERR
Xuzhou Shiyou Logistics The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development in
Development Co., Ltd. the PRC
(note (i) & (iv))
BHEERERERAT hE A& #20,000,00070 Rt ENEER
(iR (i)
Yangzhou Shiyou Logistics The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development in
Development Co., Ltd. the PRC
(note (i) & (iv))
ANEBYRERERLR H AK%10,000,0007 R ENEER
(B i R (i)
Yunnan Xin Tian Culture Travel The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Inactive

Development Limited
(note (i), (i) & (iv))

ERR A REERARAR e AR #50,000,0007C s 3
(Bt ~ (i) % i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

41. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)  41. RHBA T 2= (@)
Proportion of
ownership interest
KRR
Held by a
Place/country of Group’s subsidiary
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ effective  Held by the ofthe  Principal activities and
Name registration registered capital interest Company Company  places of operations
KRFZ
AL/ BRRA/ LS 1] RRH HEAR
£ s/ ER gifEs ERER B8 BE IEXBREZHY
Xuzhou Linan Business Management  The PRC RMBS,000,000 100% - 100%  Inactive
Co., Ltd. (note (i, (i) & (i)
BIRZEEERELR e AR %3,000,0007 EEXH
(B ~ (i B(v))
Guangzhou Yongaing Investment ~ The PRC RMB18,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
Co., Ltd. (note (i), (i), & (iv)) PRC
EMABREEAA e AK%18,000,0007 R B ERERR

(W30 - (i & (i)

notes:

0

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

The above companies are registered as a wholly foreign
owned enterprises under the PRC law.

The above companies are registered as limited companies
under the PRC law.

The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries are
not audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED.

The names of certain companies referred in these
consolidated financial statements represent management’s
best effort in translation of the Chinese names of these
companies as no English names have been registered or
available.

(i

(i)

(iv)

B RARRBREEEREMAIIEBE
©E-

LR ARREFEEZEMASBERA
7o

ZEWEB AR HEE B IRR L IEH S
WEAMEBIERARTEZ

MR EEMK A A 2 EXEE - AER
EUBBERABAET AR ZERWAE
BERNHRENRZPXEEMAEZ
ES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

77 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

42,

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42,
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

AR BRI BRI R R B
)

COMPANY
2023 2022
—EC-=H —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment R Mt = -
Interests in subsidiaries RN - Ea 1,750,067 1,633,125
1,750,067 1,633,125
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B FUA « & M E b EU
AR 36 35
Tax recoverable AR O 718 13 12
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEEY 168 202
217 249
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FERT B FA Ie B b JE < RRIB 2,955 1,946
Amount due to a director B —RESHA 38,943 32,297
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAH B B A B FRIE 95,126 92,945
137,024 127,188
Net current liabilities REEEFEE (136,807) (126,939)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERREEE 1,613,260 1,506,186
EQUITY =
Share capital &7 37,628 37,628
Reserves (note (a)) & (K77 (a) 1,575,632 1,468,558
Total equity R 1,613,260 1,506,186

Zhang Gao Bin
REE
Director

EBEFE

HAMEEE R AT 2023F Fi#

Luo Zhangguan
BET
Director

EF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BiZ=—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42. AARNBBRARAREEES

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE (@)
COMPANY (continued)
note: HiEt -
(@) Reserve movement of the Company (@) NAwEEE
Currency Capital
Share  translation Contributed redemption Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve loss Total
% EARE
R EE HEE N wtE R BR st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL  AREFT  ARETRT ARBTT AREFT AREFT

At 1 January 2023 RZE-=%—F—H 2,982,905 (239,287) 393,107 82 (1,668,249) 1,468,558
Profits for the year FEEA - - - - 72,160 72,160
Other comprehensive income ~ FEEM2EMA :
for the year:
Exchange gain on translation ~ #EAAE 2
of the Company’s g st
financial statement & 5 Mgk - 34,914 - - - 34,914

Total comprehensive income  FE2EMALH
for the year - 34,914 - - 72,160 107,074

As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=%+=A
=t-H 2,982,905 (204,373) 393,107 82 (1,596,089) 1,575,632
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M EE
(For the year ended 31 December 2023) (BtZ—F ==+ =-A=+—HILFE)

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42. AQARHNBBRRAR R #iESE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE (@)
COMPANY (continued)
note: (continued) Htat - (&)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (continued) (a) NNl EES) (E)
Currency Capital
Share translation  Contributed redemption  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve loss Total
g% BAED
BB JAGERE N il 2HEE L

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABBTT  ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETE  ARETZL

At 1 January 2022 RZE-—%—f—H 2,982,905 (364,353) 393,107 82 (1,6083,861) 1,407,880
Loss for the year FEBA - - - - (64,388) (64,388)
Other comprehensive income ~ FEEMZ2EMA :
for the year:
Exchange gain on translation ~ #EALNE 2
of the Company’s g st
financial statement B 5 Yeza - 125,066 - - - 125,066

Total comprehensive income  FE2AMALH

for the year - 125,066 - - (64,388) 60,678
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-—&£+-8
=t+-A 2,982,905 (239,287) 393,107 82 (1,668,249) 1,468,558
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company had no RZEZ=FR=_ZT==_F+=ZA
balance of distribution reserves available for distribution to =+—H  ARRWESIRFEHEHY

the owners. MR TFHEBA o
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TALENT PROPERTY GROUP LIMITED
MRAMEKEESRAF

Add #ilE : Unit A704, 3rd Floor, Tower A, New Mandarin Plaza, No. 14 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BB R B LR E T 5%
T CEERDARESIE AT04E

Tel B3 : 26206028
Fax 82 : 26206098



	封面
	封面內頁
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告書
	業務及財務回顧
	董事及高級管理人員之履歷
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告書
	獨立核數師報告書
	綜合損益及其他全面收入報表
	綜合財政狀況表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合財務報表附註
	封底內頁
	封底

